
 

Meeting contact Ruth Rimmington on 01257 515118 or email ruth.rimmington@chorley.gov.uk 

 

 
 
 
 
 

EXECUTIVE CABINET 
THURSDAY, 10TH DECEMBER 2015, 6.00 PM 
COUNCIL CHAMBER, TOWN HALL, CHORLEY 
 

AGENDA 
  

APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE 
 

1 MINUTES OF MEETING THURSDAY, 19 NOVEMBER 2015 OF 
EXECUTIVE CABINET   

 

(Pages 5 - 18) 

2 DECLARATIONS OF ANY INTERESTS 
 

 

 Members are reminded of their responsibility to declare any pecuniary 
interest in respect of matters contained in this agenda. 
  
If you have a pecuniary interest you must withdraw from the meeting. 
Normally you should leave the room before the business starts to be 
discussed. You do, however, have the same right to speak as a 
member of the public and may remain in the room to enable you to 
exercise that right and then leave immediately. In either case you must 
not seek to improperly influence a decision on the matter. 
 

 

3 PUBLIC QUESTIONS 
 

 

 Members of the public who have requested the opportunity to ask a 
question(s) on an item(s) on the agenda will have three minutes to put 
their question(s) to the respective Executive Member(s).  Each member 
of the public will be allowed to ask one short supplementary question.   
 

 

ITEM OF EXECUTIVE MEMBER (CUSTOMER AND ADVICE SERVICES) 
(INTRODUCED BY COUNCILLOR GRAHAM DUNN) 

 
4 CHORLEY PREVENTION OF HOMELESSNESS STRATEGY AND 

REVIEW 2016-2019 
 

(Pages 19 - 62) 

 Report of the Director of Customer and Advice Services.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 



5 EXCLUSION OF THE PUBLIC AND PRESS 
 

 

 To consider the exclusion of the press and public for the following items 
of business on the ground that it involves the likely disclosure of exempt 
information as defined in Paragraphs 1 and 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A 
to the Local Government Act 1972.  
  
By Virtue of Paragraph 1: Information relating to any individual. 
Condition: 
Information is exempt to the extent that, in all the circumstances of the 
case, the public interest in maintaining the exemption outweighs the 
public interest in disclosing the information. 
Information is not exempt if it relates to proposed development for which 
the local planning authority may grant itself planning permission 
pursuant to Regulation 3 of the Town & Country Planning General 
Regulations 1992(a). 
  
By Virtue of Paragraph 3: Information relating to the financial or 
business affairs of any particular person (including the authority holding 
that information) 
Condition: 
Information is not exempt if it is required to be registered under- 
The Companies Act 1985  
The Friendly Societies Act 1974  
The Friendly Societies Act 1992  
The Industrial and Provident Societies Acts 1965 to 1978  
The Building Societies Act 1986 (recorded in the public file of any 
building society, within the meaning of the Act)  
The Charities Act 1993 
Information is exempt to the extent that, in all the circumstances of the 
case, the public interest in maintaining the exemption outweighs the 
public interest in disclosing the information. 
  
Information is not exempt if it relates to proposed development for which 
the local planning authority may grant itself planning permission 
pursuant to Regulation 3 of the Town & Country Planning General 
Regulations 1992(a). 
 

 

ITEM OF DEPUTY EXECUTIVE LEADER AND EXECUTIVE MEMBER 
(RESOURCES) (INTRODUCED BY COUNCILLOR PETER WILSON) 

 
6 SOFTWARE AND POSTAL CONTRACTS 
 

(Pages 63 - 66) 

 Report of the Director of Customer and Advice Services.  
 

 

7 SHARED ASSURANCE SERVICES 
 

(Pages 67 - 72) 

 Report of the Chief Executive.  
 

 

8 ACQUISITION OF LAND, FORMER APEX HOUSE, STUMP LANE, 
CHORLEY 

 

(Pages 73 - 78) 

 Report of the Chief Executive. 
 

 



ITEM OF EXECUTIVE MEMBER (CUSTOMER AND ADVICE SERVICES) 
(INTRODUCED BY COUNCILLOR GRAHAM DUNN) 

 
9 RE-TENDERING OF HANDYPERSON AND MINOR ADAPTATION 

CONTRACTS 
 

(Pages 79 - 86) 

 Report of the Director of Customer and Advice Services.  
 

 

10 INTEGRATED HOME IMPROVEMENT SERVICES (IHIS) - 
PERFORMANCE UPDATE 

 

(Pages 87 - 92) 

 Report of the Director of Customer and Advice Services.  
 

 

11 ANY URGENT BUSINESS PREVIOUSLY AGREED WITH THE CHAIR   
 

 

 
GARY HALL  

CHIEF EXECUTIVE 
 
Electronic agendas sent to Members of the Executive Cabinet Councillor Alistair Bradley (Chair), 
Councillor Peter Wilson (Vice-Chair) and Councillors Beverley Murray, Graham Dunn, Adrian Lowe 
and Paul Walmsley.  
 

If you need this information in a different format, such as larger print or 
translation, please get in touch on 515151 or chorley.gov.uk 
 
To view the procedure for public questions/ speaking click here 
https://democracy.chorley.gov.uk/ecSDDisplay.aspx?NAME=SD852&id=852&rpid=0&sch=
doc&cat=13021&path=13021  
 
To view the procedure for “call-in” of Executive Decisions click here  
https://democracy.chorley.gov.uk/ieListMeetings.aspx?CId=117&Year=0  
 

https://democracy.chorley.gov.uk/ecSDDisplay.aspx?NAME=SD852&id=852&rpid=0&sch=doc&cat=13021&path=13021
https://democracy.chorley.gov.uk/ecSDDisplay.aspx?NAME=SD852&id=852&rpid=0&sch=doc&cat=13021&path=13021
https://democracy.chorley.gov.uk/ieListMeetings.aspx?CId=117&Year=0


This page is intentionally left blank



Executive Cabinet Thursday, 19 November 2015 

 
 
 
MINUTES OF EXECUTIVE CABINET 
 
MEETING DATE Thursday, 19 November 2015 
 
MEMBERS PRESENT:  Councillor Peter Wilson (Deputy Executive Leader in 

the Chair), Councillor Alistair Bradley (Vice-Chair) and 
Councillors Beverley Murray, Graham Dunn, 
Adrian Lowe and Paul Walmsley 

 
MEMBER RESPONSIBLE:  Councillors Danny Gee, Hasina Khan and 

Matthew Lynch 
 
COUNCIL CHAMPIONS:  Councillors Jean Cronshaw and Gordon France 
 
OFFICERS:  Gary Hall (Chief Executive), Lesley-Ann Fenton 

(Director of Customer and Advice Services), 
Jamie Carson (Director of Public Protection, 
Streetscene and Community), Chris Moister (Head of 
Governance and Property Services), Simon Clark 
(Head of Health, Environment and Neighbourhoods), 
Jamie Dixon (Head of Streetscene and Leisure 
Contracts), Asim Khan (Head of Customer, ICT and 
Transactional Services), James Thomson (Principal 
Management Accountant), Andrew Daniels 
(Communications Manager), Victoria Willett 
(Performance and Partnerships Manager), 
Lindsey Blackstock (Parks and Open Spaces Officer) 
and Ruth Rimmington (Democratic and Member 
Services Officer) 

 
OTHER MEMBERS:  Councillors Eric Bell, Charlie Bromilow, 

Paul Leadbetter, June Molyneaux, Greg Morgan, 
Mick Muncaster and Richard Toon 

 
 

15.EC.157 Minutes of meeting Thursday, 22 October 2015 of Executive Cabinet  
 
The minutes of the meeting of the Executive Cabinet held on 22 October 2015 be 
confirmed as a correct record and signed by the Executive Leader. 
 

15.EC.158 Declarations of Any Interests  
 
There were no declarations of any interests. 
 
 

 

Agenda Page 5 Agenda Item 1



Executive Cabinet Thursday, 19 November 2015 

15.EC.159 Public Questions  
 
The Chair reported that there had been no requests from members of the public to 
speak on any of the meeting’s agenda items. 
 

15.EC.160 Review of Scrap Metal Licensing Fees  
 
The Chair advised that this item would be considered first on the agenda.   
  
The report of the Director of Public Protection, Streetscene and Community was 
presented by the Executive Member (Public Protection).  The purpose of the report 
was to consider the proposed update to the fees and charges associated with Scrap 
Metal Dealer Act 2013. 
  
The Scrap Metal Dealers Act 2013 came into force in October 2013 and provided an 
updated licensing scheme for scrap metal sites and collectors.  In May 2015 the 
regulatory services team was subject to an internal audit in relation to the setting of 
licensing fees, this included those relating to scrap metal dealers and collectors.   
  
The report recommended that the fees set in 2013 should be reviewed and any 
changes implemented in April 2016 so that the licence renewals in December 2016 
reflected any changes in fees.  The fees had been reviewed and the processes 
checked to ensure that fees corresponded to the costs incurred by the council in 
administering the application and issuing the licence. 
  
Seven scrap dealer site licences had been issued by the council since the introduction 
of the Act.   
  
Decision: Approval granted to agree the new fees be implemented from 1 April 
2016. 
  
Reasons for recommendation(s) 
The proposed fees reflect the costs to the Council in administering the Scrap Metal 
Licences in line with Home Office guidance. 
  
Alternative option(s) considered and rejected 

The option to maintain the current level of fees was considered. However, we are 
required to ensure that the fees reflect the actual costs to the Council in administering 
the licences and the existing fees included additional costs associated with setting up 
the regime and the pay scale of the officers at that time. Therefore those fees were no 
longer applicable. 
 

15.EC.161 Empty Residential Properties - Policy  
 
The Chair advised that this item would be considered second on the agenda.   
  
The report of the Director of Public Protection, Streetscene and Community was 
presented by the Executive Member (Public Protection).  The purpose of the report 
was to update members of the Councils approach to dealing with problem of long term 
empty residential properties and to seek approval for a policy to address the issue. 
  
Empty residential properties were increasingly an issue of concern, both in terms of 
local impact on neighbourhoods, and the wider issue of housing supply.  For a number 

Agenda Page 6 Agenda Item 1



Executive Cabinet Thursday, 19 November 2015 

of years the Council have monitored the level of long term (over 2 years) empty 
residential properties and there was currently a corporate performance target of 195 
properties. 
  
In the past 12 months the Council had directed resource to address the empty 
residential properties that might or might not be classed as long term empty but cause 
particular nuisance or concern to local residents.  This concern might arise due to the 
appearance of the property, the state of the buildings and grounds or the perceived 
blight that the presence of the property. 
  
Using an informal approach over twenty five empty residential properties of concern 
had been either placed on the open market, been reoccupied or works had been 
undertaken to reduce the detrimental impact they had on the surrounding area.   
  
There were a number of formal measures available to the Council that could be used 
to further encourage property owners to bring them back into residential use.  In 
addition, there were specific measures through the application of a Council Tax 
premium that could be applied to unoccupied residential properties that could 
incentivise property owners to get the property occupied through the owner occupier 
or rental market. 
  
The policy appended to the report outlined these measures and the circumstances in 
which they might be used.  The application of the Council Tax premium measure 
would be the subject of a consultation process and a further report would be brought 
before Members. 
  
The benefits of benchmarking and comparing best practice were noted.   
  
Decision: Approval granted to the Empty Residential Property Policy. 
  
Reasons for recommendation(s) 
To ensure the Council has a coordinated and consistent approach to dealing with 
empty residential properties and uses a range of interventions to bring them back into 
use. 
  
Alternative option(s) considered and rejected 

None.  
  

Councillor Paul Walmsley left the meeting at 6.15pm.   
 

15.EC.162 Executive's response to the Overview and Scrutiny Task Group inquiry into 
Public Transport issues in Chorley  
 
The report of the Chief Executive was presented by the Deputy Executive Leader and 
Executive Member (Resources).   
  
An Overview and Scrutiny task group looked at public transport issues across Chorley 
and their final report was presented to Executive Cabinet in August 2015.  The report 
contained the Executive Cabinet’s response to the 15 recommendations within the 
report. 
 
 

  

Agenda Page 7 Agenda Item 1



Executive Cabinet Thursday, 19 November 2015 

Decision: Approval granted that the recommendations be agreed as follows: 
    

Recommendation Executive Cabinet Response 
  

1. That when the revised 
Lancashire County Council (LCC) 
criteria is applied to subsidised 
services operating in Chorley and 
appear to be detrimental, any 
issues or concerns will be referred 
to full Council requesting approval 
to lobby LCC to minimise the 
impact in Chorley. 

Agreed. Executive Cabinet 
anticipate the revised criteria is 
likely to be applied as part of LCCs 
budget planning from 2016/17 and 
beyond. 
  

2. Should LCC take forward the 
‘Parish Partnership Offer’ it is 
recommended that LCC consult 
and work with Cumbria County 
Council to explore how a 
Community Wheels type scheme 
could be undertaken and fully 
funded by LCC in Lancashire. 

Agreed. It is currently unclear 
whether this offer will be pursued 
by LCC.  However, should this 
proposal from LCC be taken 
forward, the Executive Cabinet or 
its representative will notify LCC 
and encourage them to engage 
with Cumbria CC. 

3. That Chorley Council contact 
Cumbria County Council to gather 
more information on their 
approach to recruiting volunteer 
drivers and to work with LCC and 
parishes to implement best 
practice in Chorley. 

Agreed. 

4. That the ‘Parish Partnership 
Offer’ (should it be progressed by 
LCC in the future) and the 
recruitment of volunteer drivers 
should be included as projects in 
the Rural Communities Action Plan 
and monitored accordingly. 

Agreed. 

5. That Chorley Council write to 
Lancashire County Council and all 
relevant operators to progress any 
issues raised by the parishes that 
have not already been covered as 
part of this review. 

Agreed. Public Transport Issues 
can be included as a discussion 
item at a future Parish Liaison 
meeting. 

6. To explore the offer from 
Stagecoach to meet on a regular 
basis to develop better working 
relations and improve 
communications and include 
Lancashire County Council 
Representatives. 

Agreed. 

7. That upon completion of the 
West Coast Strategic Studies 
process (expected April 2016) the 
Council will seek an update from, 

Agreed. 

Agenda Page 8 Agenda Item 1



Executive Cabinet Thursday, 19 November 2015 

and continue to lobby Lancashire 
County Council and Network Rail 
on the establishment of a railway 
station in Coppull. 

8. That Chorley Council follows up 
Northern Rail’s Commitment to 
looking at the lighting at Adlington 
station and if necessary also follow 
up the delivery of the Customer 
Information Screens if installation 
does not take place in Summer 
2015. 

Agreed. 

9. Once the Council is aware of the 
new franchise holder (from 
February 2016), the Executive 
Cabinet to continue to lobby and 
raise the current rail issues, in 
particular to include additional rail 
services to Manchester Airport 
from Adlington from December 
2016. 

Agreed. 

10. That consideration is given to 
including railway station 
enhancements and other public 
transport infrastructure across the 
borough in the Community 
Infrastructure Levy (CIL) 123 list 
revisions and be monitored by the 
Council to ensure funding is 
allocated and commitments are 
fulfilled. 

Agreed. The CIL 123 list is to be 
reviewed shortly. 

11. That any conditions made 
through the Buckshaw Village 
S106 agreement regarding the up-
grading and re-opening of Alker 
Lane Bridge which will improve 
access to Buckshaw Railway 
Station from Astley Village is 
followed up by the Council to 
ensure commitments are fulfilled. 

Agreed. 

12. That the Future Governance 
Viability Working Group notes the 
contents of the report on the 
benefits and potential areas of 
focus for a Combined Transport 
Authority for Lancashire in order to 
improve public transport for 
Chorley residents and the Council 
to use the findings to influence any 
future discussions regarding the 
establishment of a Combined 
Authority and its role in transport 

Agreed. A report to November 
Council is expected on the 
formation of a Combined Authority 
for Lancashire, part of which will 
include a Combined Transport 
Authority. 

Agenda Page 9 Agenda Item 1



Executive Cabinet Thursday, 19 November 2015 

provision. 

13. That Lancashire County 
Council reconsiders the displaying 
of bus timetables at all bus stops 
and shelters across the borough 
and explores the possibilities of 
funding this service by the use of 
advertising by local companies. 

Agreed. Executive Cabinet or its 
representative will inform LCC and 
encourage them to consider this 
recommendation. 

14. That Lancashire County 
Council in conjunction with the 
operators explores better ways of 
communicating increased bus 
fares to its customers. 

Agreed. Executive Cabinet or its 
representative will inform LCC and 
encourage them to consider this 
recommendation. 

15. To highlight to the Executive 
Cabinet the importance of 
considering all public transport 
needs for its residents when 
undertaking all relevant Council 
projects. For example, the 
provision of bicycle racks and 
storage units and positioning of 
bus stops as part of the Market 
Walk development proposals. 

Agreed. 

  
Reasons for recommendation(s) 
If the recommendations are approved they provide a response to the Overview and 
Scrutiny task group and also when implemented, should lead to an improvement to 
public transport in the area or at the very least seek to prevent a reduction in the 
current transport provision. 
  
Alternative option(s) considered and rejected 

None.  
 

15.EC.163 Vacant Property and Shop Front Grants - Programme Evaluation  
 
The report of the Chief Executive was presented by the Deputy Executive Leader and 
Executive Member (Resources).  The purpose of the report was to provide an 
evaluation of the vacant property and shop front grants programme and to make 
recommendations on developments for the future. 
  
The Vacant Property Grant (Shop Floor/Business Rate Subsidy) and Shop Front Grant 
programme had been in place since June 2012.  Due to demand for support from 
other areas of the town, including local service centres, there had been a number of 
expansions to the eligible areas.   
  
The report set out the funding which had been committed since May 2012 and that the 
total number of applications received was 101.  This equated to 45 town centre shop 
front grants, 40 vacant property grants/business rate subsidies and 16 local service 
centre/other areas vacant property and shop front grants.   
  
35 new business start ups and 28 existing businesses had been supported through 
the programme.  117.5 jobs had been created via the programme, with the cost per 

Agenda Page 10 Agenda Item 1



Executive Cabinet Thursday, 19 November 2015 

job to the Council being approximately £3,000, which demonstrated excellent value for 
money within the remit of publicly funded grant programmes. 
  
There were currently 25 pipeline grant enquiries, including seven from within the 
established local service centres and six from the wider Chorley area.  Publicity 
surrounding the programme in rural areas was being undertaken.  
  
Decision:  
1.         Approval granted that the take-up and successful delivery of the 

programme be noted. 
2.         Approval granted for a further £75k for the current financial year using the 

surplus generated from Market Walk. 
3.         Support given for the continuation of the programme into 2016/2017 and 

proposal to consider a financial allocation of £100k as part of the 2016/2017 
budget setting process. 

  
Reasons for recommendation(s) 
The demand for the programme continues to be high, and with the opening up of the 
programme to the wider Chorley area in June 2015, there are now increased 
opportunities for more Chorley businesses to access the programme, and for the 
benefits to be seen across the Borough. 
  
Alternative option(s) considered and rejected 

None. 
 

15.EC.164 Revenue and Capital Budget  Monitoring 2015/16: Report 2 (End of September 
2015)  
 
The report of the Chief Executive was presented by the Deputy Executive Leader and 
Executive Member (Resources).  The purpose of the report was to set out the 
provisional revenue and capital outturn figures for the Council as compared against 
the budgets and efficiency savings targets set for the financial year 2015/16. 
  
The projected revenue outturn currently showed a forecast underspend of £380k 
against budget.  The latest forecast excluded any variation to projected expenditure on 
investment items added to the budget in 2015/16.  These projects were forecast to 
fully expend in 2015/16 and should there be any balances remaining at year end they 
would be transferred into specific reserves and matched to expenditure in future years. 
  
In the 2015/16 budget the expected net income from Market Walk after deducting 
financing costs was £0.980m.  The latest projection showed that the forecast outturn 
was £1.132m, the surplus being driven by lower than budgeted financing costs. 
  
The forecast of capital expenditure in 2015/16 was £6.502m.  The Council set a 
savings target of £150k in 2015/16 from the management of the establishment. 
Excellent progress had been made in this area and the full savings target for 2015/16 
had been achieved. 
  
The Council’s Medium Term Financial Strategy proposed that working balances 
should reach £3.0m over the 3 year lifespan of the MTFS to 2017/18 due to the 
financial risks facing the Council.  A budgeted contribution into General Balances of 
£350k was contained within the new investment package for 2015/16.  The current 

Agenda Page 11 Agenda Item 1



Executive Cabinet Thursday, 19 November 2015 

forecast to the end of September indicated that the General Fund balance would be 
£2.993m by the end of the financial year. 
  
Decision:  
1.         Approval granted that the full year forecast position for the 2015/16 revenue 

budget and capital investment programme be noted. 
2.         Approval granted that the forecast position on the Council's reserves be 

noted. 
3.         To request Council approve the use of £75,000 surplus generated from 

Market Walk to invest in the Retail Grants Programme. 
4.         To request Council approve the use of £25,000 from the budget provision 

for Chorley Youth Zone to finance the Chorley Grand Prix cycling event in 
March 2016. 

5.         To request Council approve to set aside around £70,000 of additional 
revenue income from Council Tax Summons and Liability Order charges in 
2015/16 to offset any future increased liability in bad debts as a result of 
these charges.  

6.         To request Council approve the proposed additions, deletions and re-
phasing of the Capital Programme to better reflect delivery in 2015/16.  

  
Reasons for recommendation(s) 
To ensure the Council’s budgetary targets are achieved. 
  
Alternative option(s) considered and rejected 

None. 
 

15.EC.165 Chorley Council Performance Monitoring - Second Quarter 2015/2016  
 
The report of the Chief Executive was presented by the Deputy Executive Leader and 
Executive Member (Resources).   
  
The report set out performance against the Corporate Strategy, and key service 
delivery measures for the second quarter of 2015/16, 1 July to 30 September 2015.  In 
addition, this quarter the report also provided a summary of the results of the 2015 
Residents Survey and the Indices of Multiple Deprivation (IOMD) 2015. 
  
Performance of the Corporate Strategy was assessed against the delivery of key 
projects and corporate performance measures in the 2014/15 – 2016/17 Corporate 
Strategy.  A basket of key service delivery measures were also reported on each 
quarter. 
  
Overall performance of 2014/15 key projects was good, with 89% of the projects on 
track or complete.  Two projects had been rated amber; ‘develop and agree plans for 
delivery of the Friday Street Health Centre’, and ‘deliver improvements to Market 
Street’.   
  
These rating were due to issues relating to funding and scope, but in each case 
actions to address these issues had been identified and were being progressed. 
  
Overall performance on the Corporate Strategy indicators and key service delivery 
measures was excellent.  95% of the Corporate Strategy indicators and 90% of the 
key service measures were performing above target or within the 5% tolerance.   
  

Agenda Page 12 Agenda Item 1



Executive Cabinet Thursday, 19 November 2015 

The Corporate Strategy measure performing below target was a resident’s survey 
indicator; the percentage of people who regularly participate in volunteering.  An action 
plan had been developed, and was included within the report, to outline what action 
would be taken to improve performance. 
  
The key service delivery measure performing below target was the average working 
days per employee per year lost through sickness absence.  Again, an action plan was 
included within the report which outlined what actions were being taken to improve 
performance. 
  
Overall performance of the indicators in the resident’s survey 2015 was excellent with 
89% of the indicators performing above target or within the 5% tolerance.  Similarly the 
Indices of Multiple Deprivation results were also positive and showed Chorley to be 
less deprived with only eight areas now in the bottom 20%, compared with 10 in 2010. 
  
Decision: Approval granted that the report be noted. 
  
Reasons for recommendation(s) 
To facilitate the on-going analysis and management of the Council’s performance in 
delivering the Corporate Strategy. 
  
Alternative option(s) considered and rejected 

None.  
 

15.EC.166 Approval for the procurement approach including the award procedure, 
evaluation methodology and criteria to purchase fifteen 3.5 tonne tipper vans, 
one refuse collection vehicle, one skip wagon and three ride on mowers  
 
The report of the Director of Public Protection, Streetscene and Community was 
presented by the Deputy Executive Leader and Executive Member (Resources).  The 
purpose of the report was to seek approval for the procurement approach, including 
the award procedure, evaluation methodology and criteria.   
  
A number of the Vans were currently on short-term lease and by procuring these 
together with the vehicles owned, the Council was likely to achieve savings.  This 
would also standardise the Council’s vehicle fleet simplifying administration and 
maintenance arrangements. 
  
The four ‘Beavertail’ / Tipper vehicles above 3.5 tonne were subject to additional 
inspection and maintenance costs as they fell under the Council’s Vehicle Operator 
Licence.  In order to make savings, the Streetscene team had been trialling the use of 
3.5 tonne tipper vans with / without a trailer to valuate if they could operate the service 
without impacting on delivery.   
  
The benefits to this change in working methods were a reduction in initial purchase 
price, as 3.5 tipper vehicles were cheaper, and also offer ongoing savings in terms of 
fuel, maintenance and no requirement for regular inspections (as required for vehicles 
above 3.5 tonne).  Therefore, these four vehicles would be replaced by 3.5 Tone 
Tipper Vans. 
  
The report set out the reasons for the Ride On Mowers, RCV and Skip Wagon.  It was 
anticipated that the procurement for the purchase of the above vehicles would 
commence in late 2015 with orders being placed during early 2016. 

Agenda Page 13 Agenda Item 1



Executive Cabinet Thursday, 19 November 2015 

  
Decision: 
1.         Approval granted to the procurement approach for the Vans via a further 

competition through the Chest under Crown Commercial Services (CCS) 
Public Sector Vehicle Purchase Framework agreement RM1070. Lot 2 on 
this framework covers purchase of these Vans and was undertaken by CCS 
using the Open Procedure in compliance with the public Procurement 
Regulations. 

2.         Approval granted that the procurement approach for the RCV and Skip 
Wagon via two further competition exercises under separate lots of the EU 
compliant ESPO (Eastern Shires Purchasing Organisation) Specialist 
Vehicle Framework Ref 215R-324 via further competition through the 
Chest. 

3.         Approval granted to the procurement approach for the Mowers via a further 
competition through the Chest under ESPO Grounds Maintenance 
Machinery framework agreement No.274- 14. 

4.         Approval granted to the evaluation criteria for the Vans, RCV, Skip Wagon 
and Mowers as follows  
Vans, RCV and Skip Wagon: 
Cost = 65% covering purchase price. 
Quality = 35% including warranty, technical support, delivery and 
environmental impact. 
Training will be an unscored specified requirement. 
Mowers: 
Cost = 70% covering purchase price. 
Quality = 30% including warranty, technical support, delivery and 
environmental impact. 
Training and a requirement that the Mowers will be delivered during the 
week commencing 22nd February 2016, will be an unscored specified 
requirement. 
The evaluation criteria for all the vehicles may be subject to a minor 
amendment following clarification from the Framework Managers. 

  
Reasons for recommendation(s) 
Under the Council’s contract procedure rules approval by the Executive Cabinet of 
contract award procedure and evaluation criteria for tenders greater than £75,000 in 
value is required. 
  
Alternative option(s) considered and rejected 

To not agree contract award procedure and evaluation criteria and fail to comply with 
the Council procurement rules. 
 

15.EC.167 Astley 2020 update  
 
The report of the Director of Public Protection, Streetscene and Community was 
presented by the Executive Member (Community Services).  The purpose of the report 
was to update member on progress towards implementing the Astley 2020 action plan. 
  
In February 2014, the Executive Cabinet approved a five year development plan for 
Astley Hall and Park – Astley 2020.  The Astley 2020 development plan detailed 
actions covering five key areas: 
1. Astley Hall and Park conservation. 
2. Improving the visitor offer and experience. 

Agenda Page 14 Agenda Item 1



Executive Cabinet Thursday, 19 November 2015 

3. Business development to support a sustainable business model. 
4. Heritage partnership development. 
5. World War I commemoration. 
  
Significant progress had been and the latest action plan was detailed in Appendix 1 of 
the report.  Projects delivered over the last 18 months included a new exhibition space 
in Astley Farmhouse, a fountain on the lodge and the lighting of Memorial Arch.  In 
addition, a sensory garden including new footpath linking into woodland, destination 
play area and essential work to the wall in the Great Hall at Astley Hall, including 
completion of conservation plan and technical drawings for Astley Hall. 
  
Projects currently in progress included developing a green stage in the Walled 
Garden, events car parking, footpath lighting and a new glasshouse in the Walled 
Garden.   
  
There were a number of further areas for development that required additional funding 
which were set out in the report 
  
Decision: 
1.         Approval granted that the update on progress towards implementing the 

Astley 2020 action plan as detailed in the report be noted. 
2.         Approval granted that the remaining Astley 2020 budget be allocated as 

detailed in the report. 
3.         Support given for a growth bid for £350K to be put forward to fund further 

investment in footpath lighting and events infrastructure as part of the 
2016/2017 budget setting process. 

  
Reasons for recommendation(s) 
To ensure the continued development of Astley and implementation of the Astley 2020 
including provision for improved events infrastructure. 
  
Alternative option(s) considered and rejected 

None. 
 

15.EC.168 Financial Delivery of the play, open space and playing pitch strategy  
 
The report of the Director of Public Protection, Streetscene and Community was 
presented by the Executive Member (Community Services).   
  
The Play, Open Space and Playing Pitch Strategy and Action Plan were consulted on 
and given approval in September 2014.  The five year plan ran from 2014 – 2019.  
The plans took into account all open spaces, play areas and playing pitches in the 
Borough and was not just focused on Council owned land.  Priority was given to parish 
council, private and Council sites, as identified on a need basis, generally working to 
improve the lowest scoring sites first. 
  
The first year was almost complete and the Council were now working to deliver year 
two.  Year one projects, such as Astley Park Play Area, Carr Brook Trim Trail, Jubilee 
Rec Play Area, Stansted Road Play Area, Allotments in Coppull and mini football pitch 
in Adlington were delivered using money from S106 allocations, revenue and capital 
funds.  
  

Agenda Page 15 Agenda Item 1



Executive Cabinet Thursday, 19 November 2015 

Year two and subsequent years would be funded in a similar way with the option of 
also bidding for external funding to make existing money stretch further.  
  
All of the sites identified in the action plan were those which scored low for quality or 
value, or those which were located in areas of high usage and subsequently need 
investment to improve and modernise facilities and infrastructure.  The Council would 
also support other sites, not in the action plan, if there was an evidence of need and 
part funding was in place. 
  
It was proposed to allocate the existing receipts of S106 to deliver years two to five 
projects where possible.  This was because S106 money was time limited and had to 
be spent within five years of receipt or returned. The money had to be spent on Play 
Areas, Allotments, Open Space and Playing Pitches as dictated by the S106 
agreement, some on specific sites and areas and some on borough wide sites.  Much 
of the money in receipt had to be spent by 2019.  It was proposed to spend the S106 
money on the site closest to the development from which the money was obtained, 
therefore directly benefiting the local community. For example, if the money was 
allocated from a housing development in Adlington, it would be spent in Adlington. 
  
Decision: 
1.         Approval granted to allocate the existing S106 money in receipt to schemes 

as outlined in this report. 
2.         Approval granted to subsequently not open up the play and recreation fund 

to bids, but instead allocate the S106 money to specific projects within the 
strategy. 

3.         Approval granted to review and update the action plan schemes in the 
executive summary scheduled for 2017/18 and 2018/2019. 

4.         Support given to request additional funding for Coronation Recreation 
Ground and Tatton Recreation Ground to make improvements as 
evidenced by green flag judges feedback and public consultation, as part 
of the 2016/2017 budget setting process. 

  
Reasons for recommendation(s) 
The Play, Open Space and Playing Pitch Strategy and 5 year action plan have already 
been approved. It has been agreed which sites need investment and improvement in a 
priority order from 2014 - 2019. The strategy is in the process of being delivered and 
finance is needed to deliver the schemes. The existing S106 needs to be spent within 
5 years of receipt in line with the legal S106 agreement. 
  
Alternative option(s) considered and rejected 

1.         To put the Borough Wide S106 contributions into a Play and Rec Fund (as 
delivered in 2011). This has been rejected as the money needs to be allocated to 
deliver the Action Plan, and therefore has a predetermined need. Where sites 
are owned by Parish Council’s and private owner’s money will be allocated 
accordingly and schemes worked up in partnership. 

2.         To not spend the money and give it back to the developers. 
 

15.EC.169 Improving the quality of recycling collected from households  
 
The report of the Director of Public Protection, Streetscene and Community was 
presented by the Executive Member (Streetscene Services).  The purpose of the 
report was to note the issues with quality of the recycling materials collected from 
households across the Borough. 

Agenda Page 16 Agenda Item 1



Executive Cabinet Thursday, 19 November 2015 

  
Chorley residents were asked to separate their plastic bottles, cans and glass for 
recycling in a 240-litre blue bin which had a 40-litre black pod insert for paper.  A 55-
litre green box was provided for cardboard.  
  
Lancashire County Council (LCC) carried out random sampling on the co-mingled dry 
recycling (blue bin) that Veolia delivered direct to Farington Waste Technology Park 
(FWTP): a requirement of the new Materials Recovery Facility Regulations and an 
ongoing exercise.  Concerns had been raised about the quality of the material. 
Contamination levels of between 5 to 39% had been recorded, the target was less 
than 5%.  The main materials contaminating the loads were paper and cardboard and 
non-target plastic e.g. yoghurt pots, black plastic trays, plastic toys and film. 
  
If the quality of the material did not improve it could mean loads being rejected and 
lead to additional costs being incurred by the Council.  An action plan which included 
working with our waste management contractor, Veolia and a trial of collecting paper 
and cardboard together was proposed. 
  
A number of actions had also been identified in conjunction with the Council’s 
communications team to improve the quality of the recycling collected.  These 
messages would be positive to reinforce correct practise.  These included a Right 
Stuff, Right Bin week using social media to highlight to residents what materials we 
could accept for recycling, stickers for new or replacement bins detailing what 
materials go in that bin and changes to the annual waste collection calendar. These 
actions would take place over the next six months. 
  
Decision: Approval granted to the proposed actions to improve the quality of 
recycling materials. 
  
Reasons for recommendation(s) 
To take the necessary steps to improve the quality of the recycling collected from 
households. 
  
Alternative option(s) considered and rejected 

To not improve the quality of the recycling collected would lead to a reduction in our 
recycling rate and potentially additional costs for collection and disposal. 
 

15.EC.170 Exclusion of the Public and Press  
 
To consider the exclusion of the press and public for the following items of business 
on the ground that it involves the likely disclosure of exempt information as defined in 
Paragraph 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A to the Local Government Act 1972. 
 

15.EC.171 Council Tax Support Scheme and Local Discounts 2016/17  
 
The confidential report of the Director of Customer and Advice Services.was 
presented by the Deputy Executive Leader and Executive Member (Resources).   
  
The purpose of the report was to summarise some forthcoming changes to Housing 
Benefit and the welfare system.  The report also outlined options for Chorley’s Council 
Tax Support scheme and considered a change to the Local Discount and Exemption 
scheme for Council Tax.   
  

Agenda Page 17 Agenda Item 1



Executive Cabinet Thursday, 19 November 2015 

Decision:  
1.         Approval granted that the CTS scheme remain unchanged for 2016/17. 
2.         Approval granted for consultation in 2016 to align the Council’s CTS 

scheme with changes to Housing Benefit legislation effective April 2017. 
3.         Approval granted for consultation with interested parties on an increase to 

the Council Tax Empty Homes premium to 50% effective April 2016.   
  
Reasons for recommendation(s) 
1.         A close alignment of Housing Benefit and the local CTS scheme for 

administration purposes is operationally efficient and consistent. 
2.         To make the various changes to the scheme together from April 2017 would be 

the most prudent approach. 
3.         The change to the empty property premium will support the policy decisions to 

encourage the occupation of empty properties. 
  
Alternative option(s) considered and rejected 

1.         The CTS scheme could be amended from April 2016 to remove the Family 
Premium in the calculation in line with changes for the Housing Benefit Scheme. 

2.         This option has been rejected because there are other changes that need to be 
made to the scheme from April 2017 and to align all of the changes in that year is 
the most prudent approach. It will also enable time to incorporate further 
government changes that may arise from the autumn statement. 

3.         To leave the empty property premium unchanged would mean that the Council 
has not used all available measures to incentivise the return to use of long term 
empty properties. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
Chair Date  
 

Agenda Page 18 Agenda Item 1



 

 

 

 

 

Report of Meeting Date 

Director of Customer and Advice 
Services 

(Introduced by the Executive 
Member for Customer and Advice 

Services) 

Executive Cabinet  10 December 2015 

 

CHORLEY PREVENTION OF HOMELESSNESS STRATEGY AND 

REVIEW 2016-2019 

 

PURPOSE OF REPORT 

1. The purpose of the report is to set out the legal responsibility placed on the Council to carry 
out a review of homelessness in the borough and to publish a strategy, to provide an 
overview of the draft strategy and to seek approval for the consultation with partners and 
customers. 

 

RECOMMENDATION(S) 

2. It is recommended that the draft Chorley Prevention of Homelessness Strategy and Review 
2016-2019 is approved for consultation purposes. 

3. It is recommended that any minor changes to the Strategy following consultation are 
approved via an Executive Member Decision prior to publication. 

 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY OF REPORT 

4. The Homelessness Act 2002 introduced a statutory duty on local authorities to formulate and 
publish local homelessness strategies. The review reflected a strong performance over the 
period of the previous strategy.  Since 2012, homelessness presentations have reduced, 
homelessness preventions have increased and temporary accommodation use overall is on 
a downward trend as well as the elimination of ‘bed and breakfast use. 

 

5. The strategy seeks to sustain the high level of performance highlighted in the review despite 
the challenges faced via continued welfare reform, the possible reduction in new social 
housing, and further significant spending cuts to Local Authorities at all levels affecting 
related services.   

 

6. With regard to the review, and expected future challenges, the following priorities were 
devised for the strategy along with appropriate measures to achieve them: 

 

• Priority 1:  Working with all partners to ensure the offer of support, advice and 
assistance in Chorley best meets the needs of people who are homeless or threatened 
with homelessness: 

 
• Priority 2: Ensure that housing supply best meets housing need;   
 
• Priority 3: Enhance the depth and range of Housing Options services to meet current 

and future challenges; 
 

 

Agenda Page 19 Agenda Item 4



• Priority 4: Employment, training and education related to homelessness. 

 

Confidential report 
Please bold as appropriate 

Yes  No 

 

Key Decision? 
Please bold as appropriate 

Yes  No 

 

Reason  
Please bold as appropriate 

1, a change in service 
provision that impacts upon 
the service revenue budget by 
£100,000 or more 

2, a contract worth £100,000 
or more 

3, a new or unprogrammed 
capital scheme of £100,000 or 
more 

4, Significant impact in 
environmental, social or 
physical terms in two or 
more wards  

 
REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATION(S) 

(If the recommendations are accepted) 

7. The publication of a Prevention of Homelessness Strategy is a statutory requirement and the 
previous strategy is in need of a refresh, alongside a renewed programme of prevention 
measures and interventions to improve performance and meet the Councils corporate 
objectives. 

 

ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS CONSIDERED AND REJECTED 

8. Due to the statutory nature of the Prevention of Homelessness Strategy no other options 
could be considered. 

 

CORPORATE PRIORITIES 
 
9. This report relates to the following Strategic Objectives: 
 

Involving residents in improving their local 
area and equality of access for all 

X A strong local economy X 

Clean, safe and healthy communities X An ambitious council that does more 
to meet the needs of residents and 
the local area 

X 

 

THE REVIEW 
 

10. The previous Prevention of Homelessness Strategy and Review was published in 2013 and 
is due for renewal in 2016.  The Homelessness Act 2002 introduced a statutory duty on local 
authorities to formulate and publish a homelessness strategy following a review of 
homelessness.  Over the period of the previous strategy there have been significant 
decreases in households presenting as homeless along with those accepted as statutory 
homeless with a duty to house.  There was dramatic increase in the number of advice cases 
and the number of preventions.  Temporary accommodation use is in a downward trend 
overall, and there has been no ‘bed and breakfast’ use since 2012/13. 

 

11. The number of homelessness preventions rose dramatically from 214 in 2011/12 to 808 in 
2014/15, and this was mirrored by the drop is statutory homeless households from 37 in 
2011/12 to 1 in 2014/15.  The numbers of households in temporary accommodation has 
dropped from an average quarterly figure of 18.5 in 2011/12 to 8.25 in 2014/15. 

Agenda Page 20 Agenda Item 4



12. The Housing Options team’s focus on preventions appears to be successful in both helping 
households remain in existing accommodation and obtain new accommodation. 
Discretionary Housing Payments and Select Move respectively are the most common 
prevention methods. The vast majority of the actions from the previous strategy were 
completed and the success factors from the previous strategy were demonstrably met 
which were as follows: 

 

 Improving our service for customers; 

 Reducing the use of temporary accommodation; 

 Increasing the prevention of homelessness. 

 
STRATEGIC OBJECTIVES 

 
13. As the review demonstrated strong performance in the reduction and prevention of 

homelessness, the focus of the strategy is to maintain this high performance even with 
significant future challenges such as: 

 

 increases in housing options customers through continued welfare reform; 

 threats to new Social Housing supply due to rent changes and ‘Starter Homes’; 

 cuts in Local Authority funding both at District and County level. 

 
14. From the review and with regard to future challenges the strategy set out the following 

strategic objectives: 

 

 Priority 1:  Working with all partners to ensure the offer of support, advice and 
assistance in Chorley best meets the needs of people who are homeless or 
threatened with homelessness: 

 

 Priority 2: Ensure that housing supply best meets housing need;   

 

 Priority 3: Enhance the depth and range of Housing Options services to meet 
current and future challenges; 

 

 Priority 4: Employment, training and education related to homelessness. 

 

15. Under each of the priorities a range of actions and several measures are listed in the action 
plan that are conducive to achieving and monitoring delivery against the priorities.  Overall, 
whilst recognising the good performance related to homelessness and housing advice in 
the past 3 years, the Council is also acutely cognisant of the difficult future challenges, and 
the overall aim is to keep the Council’s performance at a high level. 

   

16. The success of the strategy and its action plan will be broadly measured against the 
following success factors: 

 

1. Keeping the number of preventions consistently high – Target of 150 plus per quarter; 
 

2. Ensuring the number of households in Temporary Accommodation remains low, and 
‘Bed and Breakfast’ continues to be eliminated – Target a maximum of 13 at any one 
time in Temporary Accommodation and nil ‘Bed and Breakfast’ (subject to risk). 

 

3. The numbers of statutory homeless households remain low – Target of no more than 
10 per year. 

Agenda Page 21 Agenda Item 4



CONSULTATION 
 
17. If the recommendations are accepted then the draft strategy will be circulated amongst all 

partners and stakeholders, internal and external, be available via the website for the 
consultation period from 21st December 2015 to 21st February 2016 inclusive.  Following 
consultation if minor material changes are necessary the Strategy and Review can be 
subject to an Executive Member Decision before it can be published.  Should any major 
changes be required this will be brought back to Executive Cabinet for approval before 
publication. 

 

IMPLICATIONS OF REPORT 
 
18. This report has implications in the following areas and the relevant Directors’ comments are 

included: 
 

Finance X Customer Services   

Human Resources  Equality and Diversity   

Legal X Integrated Impact Assessment 
required? 

X 

No significant implications in this area  Policy and Communications  

 
COMMENTS OF THE STATUTORY FINANCE OFFICER  
 
19. In the main the actions identified in appendix A will be funded from existing resources. On 

occasion a key action may identify an improvement to the service at an additional cost. This 
may be a one off cost funded by in-year budget savings or the cost may be ongoing and 
therefore require an increase in the base budget. Should the latter be the case a report to 
Executive Cabinet outlining cost and outcomes will be produced. 

 
20. Additional costs not part of the base budget are the Employability Officer post costing £33k 

per annum, funding is due to finish on the 31st March 2016. In addition the funding for the 
16/17 year old drop in centre project, £15k per annum, has been requested as an 
investment growth item in 16/17 budget setting process. 

 
COMMENTS OF THE MONITORING OFFICER  
 
21. The proposed strategy document discharges the Council’s obligations under the legislation. 
 
LESLEY-ANN FENTON 
DIRECTOR OF CUSTOMER AND ADVICE SERVICES 
 

Report Author Ext Date Doc ID 

Mick Coogan 5552 12/11/21015 *** 

 

Background Papers 

Document Date File Place of Inspection 

Draft Prevention of 
Homelessness Strategy and 

Review 2016/19 
12/11/2015 *** *** 

 

Agenda Page 22 Agenda Item 4



 

 

The Prevention of  

Homelessness Strategy 

Draft 
 

  

Agenda Page 23 Agenda Item 4



CONTENTS 

 Page No 

Introduction 1 

Scope of the Strategy  1 

National Context 2 

Local Context 4 

Housing Supply and Demand in Chorley 4 

Homelessness Presentations and Decisions 6 

Rough Sleeping 11 

Advice Cases and Preventions 12 

Resources and Support Available 19 

Temporary Accommodation 21 

Review of the Prevention of Homelessness Strategy 2012-16 22 

Strategic Priorities of the Prevention of Homelessness Strategy 2016-19 25 

Governance of the Strategy 27 

The Prevention of Homelessness in Chorley 27 

Securing Accommodation 27 

Securing Support 28 

Success Factors 28 

Future Challenges 28 

Appendix A – Action Plan 29 

Appendix B - Glossary 36 

 

Agenda Page 24 Agenda Item 4



1 

Introduction 
 
The prevention of homelessness is a key priority of Chorley Council, and the Housing Options 
team and other functions of the Strategic Housing service are heavily focused towards this goal.  
This Prevention of Homelessness Review and Strategy 2016-19 fulfils the Council’s statutory 
requirements under the Homelessness Act 2002 to carry out a review of homelessness in the 
borough, and to publish a strategy.  This document replaces the previous Prevention of 
Homelessness Review and Strategy 2012-16. 
 
The purpose of the homelessness review is to: 
 

 review the levels, and likely future levels, of homelessness in Chorley; 
 

 review activities which are carried out for any purposes of homelessness prevention and 
securing accommodation or support for households who are homeless, threatened with, 
becoming homeless or returning to homelessness in Chorley; and 

 

 review the resources available to Chorley and its partners, for the activities stated in the 
paragraph above. 
 

The review will be published together with the strategy and be available online or in Chorley 
Council’s Civic Office. 
 
The purpose of the homelessness strategy is to manifest how the Council will implement: 
 

 the prevention of homelessness in Chorley; 
 

 the securing of accommodation for households who are homeless or threatened with 
homelessness in Chorley; and 

 

 the securing of the satisfactory provision of support for homeless households or those who 
have been homeless and need support to prevent them returning to homelessness. 

 
Chorley Council will have regard to this strategy when discharging its functions in relation to 
homelessness. 
 

Scope of the Strategy  
 
The scope of this strategy is to provide prevention measures and services primarily for those living 
in or with a local connection (or recognised link or need, such as domestic violence) to Chorley, 
and for those where there is a specific need, duty or request for a specific service and where this is 
appropriate. It is not the case that households will have to be homeless in order to access or 
benefit from any of the measures within this strategy. It is the aspiration of Government and all 
stakeholders delivering or engaged in these services that households are able to access 
appropriate, good quality housing advice long before there is a risk of homelessness or a crisis 
point is reached. 
 
Homelessness can be defined in many ways and can mean different things depending on the 
person or household experiencing it. 
 
The legal definition of ‘homeless’ is contained in three inter-related sections of the Housing Act 
1996, part 7. Taken together these sections provide that a person is homeless if he or she: 
 
1. Has no accommodation physically available for him or her to occupy in the UK or elsewhere; 
 

Agenda Page 25 Agenda Item 4



2 

2. Has no accommodation available which he or she is legally entitled occupy; 
 
3. Has accommodation which is available and which he or she is legally entitled to occupy but 

cannot secure entry to that accommodation or;  
 
4. Has accommodation available which he or she is entitled to occupy but that accommodation 

consists of a moveable structure and there is no place where the applicant is entitled or 
permitted both to place and reside in it or; 

 
5. Has accommodation available, which he or she is entitled to occupy and entry can be 

secured to it, but that accommodation is not reasonable to continue to occupy. 
 
Irrespective of this definition, not everyone qualifies for help from the Councils under the 
homelessness legislation. It can be said that within the framework of Housing Options services in 
each respective Council, there are those to whom the Council owes one or a number of legal 
duties, and there are those to whom no duty is owed, however these customers are still able to 
access a variety of housing services. 
 
There are a number of legal duties and powers contained within the Housing Act 1996 part 7 
(‘Homelessness‘) ranging from the duty to notify of a decision to an obligation to provide 
accommodation. In order to determine if a duty is owed, the Councils are required to make 
enquiries in order to assess if an applicant is eligible, homeless or threatened with homelessness 
within 28 days, has a priority need, and is not intentionally homeless. 
 
Pending these enquiries, in certain circumstances there are duties to provide interim 
accommodation and to provide assistance with the storage of belongings. Where all the required 
tests are satisfied and an acceptance is made, the full or main housing duty will be owed. This 
requires the Council to ‘secure that accommodation is available for occupation by the applicant and 
his household’. The law does not state for how long this period of accommodation should be and 
the new provisions of the Localism Act will enable Councils to discharge this duty by providing a 12 
month Assured Shorthold tenancy in the private rented sector (although the council has decided 
against discharging its duty into the private sector this far). 
 
Homelessness services will to some extent be reactive and must provide for those cases in crisis, 
however the strategic aim is to provide measures which result in these cases being the exceptions 
rather than the rule. 
 
Further, there are measures proposed which may mean that the customer accessing them is never 
in a position to be at risk of homelessness, for example by accessing the Select Move Choice 
Based Lettings scheme and therefore planning ahead. 
 

National Context 
 
The Government’s main policy initiatives in relation to homelessness have not been changed or 
superseded since the previous strategy. The latest of the initiatives Making Every Contact Count : 
A Joint Approach to Preventing Homelessness (DCLG) 2012 , which followed the nationwide roll 
out of No Second Night Out NSNO) also in 2012.  Chorley Council has embraced the principles of 
NSNO and has robust procedures for assisting people sighted or reported as rough sleeping, 
which are normally reported through the national rough sleeper website/phone line ‘Streetlink’.  In 
Spring 2015 three Supreme Court cases, Hotak, Kanu and Johnson, changed how Local 
Authorities deal with vulnerability and equality when making homelessness decisions, in particular 
replacing the ‘Pereira Test’ on vulnerability. 
 
The housing benefit reduction for under-occupancy was introduced in April 2013 for social tenants 
of a working age, along with removal of full Council Tax support for working age claimants in the 
same month.  The benefit cap of £500 per week for couples/single parents, and £350 per week for 

Agenda Page 26 Agenda Item 4



3 

single people was introduced in September 2013.  Universal Credit (UC) was introduced by the 
Welfare Reform Act 2012, and replacing the system of benefits and tax credits with a single direct 
monthly payment, and UC was rolled out for new single/couple claimants in November 2014, and 
new family claimants in February 2015.  Whilst the extension of the ‘Shared Accommodation Rate’ 
to 25 to 34 year olds began in January 2012, it was reasonably new at the introduction of the 
previous strategy, and like all the welfare changes above, provided new challenges over the period 
of the 2012-16 Strategy. 
 
Following the General Election in May 2015, and the subsequent budget in July, legislation has 
emerged that impacts on housing and homelessness.  The Welfare Reform and Work Bill 2015, 
was introduced in the House of Commons on 9 July 2015, with a focus on reducing benefits and 
increasing employment.  The main elements of the bill that concern homelessness are as follows: 
 

 A reduction in benefit cap to £20,000 PA for couples/single parents, and £13,400 PA for 
single people; 

 

 Freezing most working age benefits plus certain of Working Tax Credit and Child Benefit for 
4 years from April 2016; 

 

 Limiting the child element in tax credits/UC to 2 children for claims/births after April 2017; 
 

  Abolishing the family element in tax credits/UC for new claims from 2017; 
 

 Employment Support Allowance (ESA) claimants in the Work Related Activity group will have 
the rate reduced to Job Seekers Allowance levels from April 2017; 

 

 The reduction in youngest child age for UC claimants to 2 (from 3) for work preparation 
requirements, and 3 (from 5) for full work related requirements (available for and looking for 
work). 

 

 The reduction in rents for social landlords by 1% each year for 4 years from April 2016. 
 

Also in the Summer Budget 2015, 18 to 21 year olds who receive UC will need to apply for an 
apprenticeship or traineeship, gain work-based skills, or go on a mandatory work placement by 
April 2017 or lose their entitlement.  This 18 to 21 year old UC measure is expected to be 
implemented by future regulation. 
 
The Housing and Planning Bill 2015 was introduced in the House of Commons on 13th October 
2015, and contains legislation on the following which could have a particular impact on housing 
and homelessness: 
 

 ‘Starter Homes’ will impact on the numbers of new social homes delivered via planning 
obligations, however enough detail is not yet known to estimate the extent; 

 

 The extension of Right to Buy discounts to Housing Association tenants will also impact on 
the supply of social housing; 

 

 Private Rented Sector measures giving Local Authorities greater powers to identify an tackle 
‘rogue landlords’; 

 

  Measures to assist Private Landlords to recover abandoned properties;  
 

 Stricter tests for Houses in Multiple Occupation (HMO) licenses including management 
arrangements; 

 

Agenda Page 27 Agenda Item 4



4 

 Measures to allow rent recovery from Private Landlords if they have committed a specific 
offence; 

 

 Mandatory rent for high income social tenants, which may therefore accelerate Right to Buy; 
 

 Paves the way for future regulation to reduce social housing regulation. 
 

The Housing and Planning Bill 2015 is underpinned by the nation’s aspiration for home ownership, 
however it may not be entirely conducive to meeting the needs of the majority of households who 
are threatened with homelessness, and looks likely to reduce the supply of social housing. 

 

Local Context 
 
Chorley is a borough with a prime strategic location central Lancashire.  The borough has a 
population of 111,607 (mid-year population estimate 2007) and 49,157 households (Ctax Base 
2015).  Chorley is considered substantially rural, with 7 rural wards out of 20 and around a 1/5th of 
the population in the rural areas.  Chorley is well served with the motorway network in particularly 
the M61, as well the M6 and M65 running through the borough.  There are three train stations in 
the Chorley allowing quick access to Manchester, Preston, Liverpool and beyond. 
 
Chorley Council has the vision of being: “an ambitious council that achieves more listening to 
the whole community and exceeding their needs” expressed in the Corporate Strategy 2014, 
and has the following strategic objectives: 
 

 Involving residents in improving their local area and equality of access for all; 
 

 A strong local economy; 
 

 Clean, safe and healthy communities; 
 

 An ambitious council that does more to meet the needs of residents and the local area. 
 
The Prevention of Homelessness Strategy shares the corporate vision and strives to meet all 4 of 
the Corporate Strategy’s objectives and this is demonstrated in the action plan (Appendix A). 
 

Housing Supply and Demand in Chorley 
 
Chorley has a reasonably balanced housing market when compared to the other Local Authorities 
in the North West.  Homes are more affordable than the regional average when comparing 
incomes to lower quartile median entry level housing, as well empty dwelling percentages being 
lower than the regional average, which is unique in the Lancashire area.  Chorley has over-
performed compared to similar authorities consistently providing large volumes of affordable 
housing. 
 
Table 1 
 

Affordable Housing  Delivered in Chorley by Year 

Year/Tenure 2012/13 2013/14 2014/15 

All New Affordable Housing 183 129 165 

New Social Housing 104 106 136 

Source: Chorley Council Data  

 

Agenda Page 28 Agenda Item 4



5 

The numbers of new affordable homes delivered in Chorley has seen year on year increases if the 
Government’s equity loan products are taken out of the equation (Help to Buy introduced in 
2013/14 could not be classed as affordable) as can be seen in table 1 above when just looking at 
new Social Housing (Social or Affordable Rent).  The increase delivery of social housing is also 
reflected in the increased lets in the borough when looking at Select Move data in table 2 below 
with new homes making up around 1/5th of total lets 
 
Table 2 
 

Chorley Social Housing Let Via Select Move by Year 

Bedrooms/Year 1 2 3 4+ Total 

2012/13 204 225 121 11 561 

2013/14 189 269 151 7 616 

2014/15 180 287 157 14 638 

Source: Select Move Data 

 
Looking at the Census data on households, Chorley is predominantly owner occupied, with an 
increasing amount of households owning their properties outright.  The PRS has increased 
significantly over the ten year period, and whilst social housing looks to have fallen, possibly due to 
right to buy towards the start of the century, the figure currently expected to be around 6,500 
increased by constant new developments.  The census figures are likely to be unreported at the 
time due to empty properties, non-responses and the lack of understanding of tenure, which can 
be seen in table 3 as there has been no homes ‘rented from the council’ since the March 2007 
stock transfer to Chorley Community Housing. 
 
Whilst the percentage of social housing is relatively low in the borough, research such as the 
SHMA in 2009 and Rural Housing Needs Study in 2011 have identified high levels of aspiration for 
home ownership which are generally reflected in the tenure mix of the area. 
 
Table 3 
 

Tenure of Household in Chorley from Census 2011 2001 

All households 44,919 100.0% 41022 100.0% 

Owned 33,783 75.2% 32131 78.3% 

Owned outright 15,906 35.4% 13339 32.5% 

Owned with a mortgage or loan 17,877 39.8% 18792 45.8% 

Shared ownership (part owned and part rented) 283 0.6% 352 0.9% 

Social rented 5,843 13.0% 5901 14.4% 

Rented from council (Local Authority) 1,376 3.1% 3118 7.6% 

Other 4,467 9.9% 2783 6.8% 

Private rented 4,587 10.2% 1993 4.9% 

Private landlord or letting agency 4,066 9.1% 1685 4.1% 

Other 521 1.2% 308 0.8% 

Living rent free 423 0.9% 645 1.6% 

Source: Office for National Statistics 
 

Agenda Page 29 Agenda Item 4



6 

Since April 2011 Chorley Council the majority of social stock in the borough has let through the 
Select Move, which is the sub-regional Choice Based Lettings partnership for Central Lancashire, 
including Preston and South Ribble councils and most Registered Providers in the sub-region.  
Chorley Council meets its Part IV obligation under the Housing Act 1986 to provide an allocation 
scheme via Select Move. 
 
Demand by bedroom size on the housing register can be seem in the table below as of the end of 
August 2015 in table 4.  Band A to C are the reasonable preference bands with A being the highest 
priority.  25% of current Housing Register applicants are considered to be in reasonable preference 
categories.  It can also be seen that the vast majority of need, 86%, is for smaller properties with 
one or two bedrooms. 
 
Table 4 
 

Chorley Select Move Households as of 31st August 2015 

Band/Bedroom Need A B C D E Total 

1 12 53 77 127 217 487 

2 6 17 48 115 134 322 

3 1 5 7 49 32 97 

  4+ 1 4 3 14 16 38 

Total 20 79 135 305 399 938 

Source: Select Move Data 

 
The number of Chorley households on the Housing Register as seen a steady decrease over the 
past 3 years as shown in table 5.  This is partly due to changes to the Allocations Policy following 
the Localism Act 2011, which were implemented in February 2014, and also assisted by the 
excellent delivery of new social housing within the borough. 
 
Table 5 
 

Chorley Select Move Households at Year End by Bedroom Need 

Bedroom Need/Year 1 2 3 4+ Total 

2012/13 834 519 140 31 1524 

2013/14 598 371 107 39 1115 

2014/15 542 343 96 34 1015 

Source: Select Move Data 

 

Homelessness Presentations and Decisions 
 
With a strong focus on preventing homelessness in the borough the number of homelessness 
decisions have seen significant reductions over the last four years reducing from 87 in 201/12 .to 
45 in 2014/15, a drop of 48%. The drop over the last 4 years for decisions wasn’t as drastic as can 
be seen between 2008/09 and 2010/11 (see figure 1 below), however the recent downward trend 
is encouraging and a reflection of the holistic prevention work carried out by the Housing Options 
team. 
 

Agenda Page 30 Agenda Item 4



7 

Figure 1 
 

 
 

Source: Chorley Housing Options Data 

 

The number of homeless applicants given a decision of ‘eligible, unintentionally homeless and in 
priority need’, has fallen drastically to residual levels, with only one such decision in the last two 
financial years, and these are shown as ‘accepted full duty’.  The full duty refers to the council’s 
obligation to provide accommodation. 
 
More detail on the homelessness decision outcomes can be seen in figure 2 below.  The most 
common type of decision is that the presenting household is “eligible, but not homeless”, and this 
decision type has reduced every year in line with the total number of decisions declining, 
representing 59% of decisions in 2012/13 and 62% in 2014/15. The number of ‘eligible, homeless 
and in priority need, but intentionally so’ decisions has actually increased despite the fall in total 
decisions, with the total of intentional households rising from 3.7% in 2012/13 to 20.0% in 2014/15.   
The number of decisions that households were ‘eligible, homeless but not in priority need’ have 
remained stable but as a percentage have increased form 8.6% in 2012/13 to 13.3% in 2014/15. 
Ineligible decisions as illustrated are very rare, and the only type of decision to show a real decline 
‘eligible, unintentionally homeless and in priority need’. 
  

2008/09 2009/10 2010/11 2011/12 2012/13 2013/14 2014/15

Total Decisions 161 78 28 87 81 57 45

Accepted Full Duty 80 34 6 37 22 0 1

% Accepted 49.7% 43.6% 21.4% 42.5% 27.2% 0.0% 2.2%

0

20

40

60

80

100

120

140

160

180

N
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 

H
o

u
s

e
h

o
ld

s
 

Chorley - Total Decisions and Full Duty Decisions 

Agenda Page 31 Agenda Item 4



8 

Figure 2 
 

 Source: 
Chorley Housing Options Data 
 
The majority of households, 71%, who presented as homeless were single people with no 
dependants and only 29% had dependent children or were pregnant. As illustrated in figure 3 
couples with dependent children/pregnant make up the minority of families presenting with the 
majority only having one adult member. 
 

Figure 3 
 

  
Source: Chorley Housing Options Data 

2012/13 2013/14 20114/15

1. Full Duty 22 0 1

2. Intentional 3 8 9

3. Not Priority 7 7 6

4. Not homeless 48 42 28

5. Ineligible 1 0 1

6. Total decisions 81 57 45

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

70

80

90

N
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 

H
o

u
s
e
h

o
ld

s
 

Chorley - Homeless Decision Outcomes  

71% 

21% 

8% 

 Household Composition of Homeless 
Presentations 

One Person

Lone Parent/Pregnant

Couple with
Children/Pregnant

Agenda Page 32 Agenda Item 4



9 

The following table 6 is a breakdown of figure 3 above and use 18 months data from October 2013 
to March 2015 inclusive.  
 
Table 6 
 

        
Households with  One Person       
        
Age of Applicant Homelessness Presentations % of Total Per year of Age Group 
16 to 17 22 42.3% 11.0 
18 to 24 9 17.3% 1.3 
25 to 34 5 9.6% 0.5 
35 to 54 11 21.2% 0.6 
55 to 64 1 1.9% 0.1 
65 plus 4 7.7% N/A 

  52     

        
        
Households with Lone Parent and Dependent Children or Member Pregnant   
        
Age of Applicant Homelessness Presentations % of Total Per year of Age Group 
16 to 17 0 0.0% 0.0 
18 to 24 7 46.7% 1.0 
25 to 34 5 33.3% 0.5 
35 to 54 3 20.0% 0.2 
55 to 64 0 0.0% 0.0 
65 plus 0 0.0% N/A 

  15     

        
Households with Couple and Dependent Children or Member 
Pregnant     
        
Age of Applicant Homelessness Presentations % of Total Per year of Age Group 
16 to 17 0 0.0% 0.0 
18 to 24 2 33.3% 0.3 
25 to 34 3 50.0% 0.3 
35 to 54 1 16.7% 0.1 
55 to 64 0 0.0% 0.0 
65 plus 0 0.0% N/A 

  6     

        
All Household Types       
        
Age of Applicant Homelessness Presentations % of Total Per year of Age Group 
16 to 17 22 30.1% 11.0 
18 to 24 18 24.7% 2.6 
25 to 34 13 17.8% 1.3 
35 to 54 15 20.5% 0.8 
55 to 64 1 1.4% 0.1 
65 plus 4 5.5% N/A 

  73     

        
Source: Chorley Housing Options Data 
 

As the age brackets above are different sizes, the right hand column shows the number of 
presentations per year of age group for comparison purposes.  Whilst the numbers of one person 
households presentations are spread across the age groups, they are skewed towards the younger 
end with a 16/17 year old far more likely to present as homeless than any other household type, 
followed by 18 to 24 year olds but to a much lesser degree.  It is worth noting that almost half lone 
parent households are 18 to 24.  Overall homeless applicants who are 16/17 are more than four 
times as likely to present as 18 to 24 years olds, and over 8 times more likely to present than 25 to 
34 year olds, with the likelihood of a presentation decreasing with age.  The figures demonstrate 
something an issue that the Council is acutely cognisant of, and that young people threatened with 
homelessness in the borough, in particular 16/17 year olds.  
 

Agenda Page 33 Agenda Item 4



10 

The main reasons for homelessness presentations can be seen in table 7 below, and the top two 
reasons, which are essentially family and friends ‘no longer willing to accommodate’ making up 
41.1% of these, almost a third of all reason being due to parental evictions.  The loss of rented 
properties or rent arrears make up 4 of the top 8 reasons 28.8%.  Relationship breakdowns feature 
3 times, making up 12.3% of the total, with 5.5% being related to violence.  Leaving institutions 
such as prisons, hospitals and care also accounting for 12.3% of the total, with leaving 
prison/remand being the most frequent with 6.8%. 
 
Table 7 
 

Main Reason for Homelessness Presentation - Oct 2013 to March 2015  Number  Percentage 

Parents no longer willing or able to accommodate 22 30.1% 

Other relatives or friends no longer willing or able to accommodate 8 11.0% 

Loss of rented or tied accommodation: Reasons other than termination of AST 8 11.0% 

Loss of rented or tied accommodation: Termination of AST 5 6.8% 

Non-violent breakdown of relationship with partner 5 6.8% 

Left prison/on remand 5 6.8% 

Rent arrears on: Registered Provider dwellings 4 5.5% 

Rent arrears on: Private sector dwellings 4 5.5% 

Violence: Violent breakdown of relationship involving partner 3 4.1% 

Left hospital 3 4.1% 

Other reason (e.g. homeless in emergency, sleeping rough or in hostel, returned from abroad) 3 4.1% 

Violence: Violent breakdown of relationship involving associated persons 1 1.4% 

Violence: Other forms of violence 1 1.4% 

Left other institution or LA care 1 1.4% 

Total 73 100.0% 

Source: Chorley Housing Options Data 

 
The main reasons for homelessness presentations can therefore be classed into four main themes 
making up 94.5% with the remainder being ‘other’ and ‘other forms of violence with 4. 1% and 
1.4% of all presentations respectively. 
 
Table 8 
 

Main Themes for Homelessness Presentation - Oct 2013 to March 2015 Percentage  

Family or friends no longer willing or able to accommodate 41.1% 

Loss of rented accommodation or rent arrears 28.8% 

Relationship breakdowns 12.3% 

Leaving institutions 12.3% 

Other reasons 5.5% 

Total 100.0% 

Source: Chorley Housing Options Data 

Agenda Page 34 Agenda Item 4



11 

 

Looking at the most prolific presenting age group, 16/17 year olds (all single), the main reason for 
presenting was ‘parents no longer willing to accommodate” with 12 or 55%, and second was ‘other 
relatives of friends no longer willing to accommodate” with 4 or 18%, with the third being loss of 
rented accommodation (non-AST).  For the 18/24 year olds single people parental evictions and 
prison leavers were in equal numbers with 3 (or a third) each with the remaining reasons being 2 
for loss of an AST and 1 for other relative/friend evicting.  Therefore it is clear that the major factor 
in youth homelessness preventions is family related evictions, but cases can become more 
complicated towards the older end of the youth scale with prison leavers and loss of ASTs 
becoming more common.   For the five 19 to 24 year old single cases, the theme was still family 
and friend evictions (2 parents and 1 other family/friends), and for the 16 single over 35 years olds 
the main theme was leaving institutions ( 3 hospital, 2 prison and 1 other), 5 due to loss of rented 
accommodation or rent arears (3 non AST and 2 RP rent arears) and 3 due to relationship 
breakdowns ( 2 non-violent and 1 violent). 
 
Looking out households with a child/pregnant, for 18 to 24 year olds 5 out of 9 cases were due to 
parental evictions, with the rest being due to loss of rented accommodation/rent arears (2 x non-
AST, 1 x AST and 1 x PRS arears).  For households with a dependent child/pregnant 7 out of 12 
were due to loss of rented accommodation/rent arears (3 arears PRS, 2 loss of AST, 1 RP arears, 
1 loss of non-AST).  The only other reoccurring theme for 25 year plus families was relationship 
breakdowns with 4 of the 12 (3 non-violent and 1 violent). 
 
The themes for homelessness, particularly when cross tabulating with household types, whilst 
overlapping are revealing.  Different household types at different ages are more likely to attribute a 
certain them as the main reason for their homelessness presentation based on age and household 
type, with younger households main reason being due to family/friends evicting, and older 
households due to rent arears and also leaving an intuition if single.  Relationship breakdowns also 
feature more in older households to a lesser extent, whether or not there are dependent children.   
Overall levels of homelessness have been demonstrated as low and decreasing by this section, 
and whilst there will be additional challenges in the future, the work of the Housing Options team 
and its partners is anticipated keep levels of homelessness low in Chorley in the future. 
 

Rough Sleeping 
 
Chorley Council has carried out an extensive Rough Sleeper Count for each of the last 4 years in 
November from 2011 to 2014.  Stakeholders were surveyed to determine likely locations, and more 
recently since No Second Night Out, occurrences of rough sleeping reported through the 
StreetLink website or helpline have also informed the search. 
 
The count for rough sleepers has included Council Members, independent verifiers and two search 
teams in an extensive number of locations in addition to the town centre.  In each of the 4 years 
there have been no rough sleepers found who were bedded down meeting the Government 
definition.  The Rough Sleeper Count is a snap shot of a ‘typical night’ in the borough, and must be 
carried out between 1st October and 30th November, however an estimate rather than a physical 
count is an option depending on circumstances and past numbers.  Whilst the count is a snap shot, 
it does not suggest there are never any instances of rough sleeping in Chorley, just than none 
were found on the night in question. 
 
When people rough sleeping have been reported to StreetLink staff from the Strategic Housing 
service have endeavoured to find and assist the reported persons in the early hours of the 
following day.  Anyone in the borough who spots a person rough sleeping in the borough they are 
encouraged to do this through StreetLink who then send a referral to Chorley Council, and these 
notifications began to be sent in early 2013. 
 

Agenda Page 35 Agenda Item 4



12 

Table 9 
 

 
Source: Chorley Housing Options Data 

 
4 of the 34 reported StreetLink referrals ended up with a person rough sleeping being found, 
however in 2014 the same person was reported 3 times in quick succession but refused help and 
the other two times are recorded as repeat cases.  The other 2 people who were assisted into 
emergency accommodation.  Where no person was found rough sleeping, in 5 cases evidence 
such as tents or clothes were found. Overall there is little evidence that rough sleeping is a 
significant issue in Chorley, but in genuine cases if the person rough sleeping has wanted help 
then the Council has been able to assist. 
 

Advice Cases and Preventions 
 
The number of advice cases generally reflects the number of households who have been given 
advice or assistance by Chorley Councils Housing Options team whether or not they consider 
themselves to be threatened with homelessness, and whist presentations and advice cases are 
normally separate there can be some overlap.  The number of advice cases has increased over 
time, in particularly in the last 3 years as seem in figure 4 below. 
 
Figure 4 
 

 Source: Chorley Housing Options Data 

 

StreetLink Reports by Calendar Year

Year  Reported 

 Person/s 

Found? 

 No Evidence 

Found  Evidence Found 

 Location too 

Unspecific to 

Look 

 Living in a 

Dwelling  Repeat Case 

2013 10 1 8 0 1 0 0

2014 14 1 5 4 0 2 2

2015* 10 1 5 1 0 3 0

34 3 18 5 1 5 2

*Up to and including September

Agenda Page 36 Agenda Item 4



13 

Comparing advice cases from 2008/9 to 2014/15, it is an astounding rise of almost exactly 200%.  
It would be understandable that such a rise in case work could lead to extra stresses on the 
Housing Options team and an increase in homelessness presentations and acceptances, however 
looking at figure 2 earlier this seems to be the opposite. 
 
Table 10 
 

Advice Cases – Main Reason for Contact (1% +) Number Percentage 

Asked to leave by family and friends 306 17.5% 

Under – Occupying property 277 15.9% 

Possession Action Threatened – Social Sector Housing 149 8.5% 

Relationship Breakdown - Violent 145 8.3% 

Relationship Breakdown – Non-Violent 119 6.8% 

Possession Action Threatened – Private Sector Housing 89 5.1% 

Evicted by Private Landlord – NTQ/Court Order 70 4.0% 

Possession Action Threatened – Owner Occupation  59 3.4% 

Affordability – Debt/Financial Difficulty 46 2.6% 

Arrears – Social Sector Housing 43 2.5% 

Arrears – Private Sector Housing 41 2.3% 

Leaving Prison 41 2.3% 

Evicted By Social Sector Landlord 30 1.7% 

Miscellaneous – Overcrowding 30 1.7% 

Advice – Finding Social Housing/Select Move 23 1.3% 

Affordability – Universal Credit 23 1.3% 

Evicted by Hostel/Supported Housing/Refuge Provider 20 1.1% 

No Fixed Abode 20 1.1% 

Harassment – Anti Social Behaviour/Violence including Racial 19 1.1% 

Despair 18 1.0% 

Source: Chorley Housing Options Data 

 
The main reason for advice cases can be seen in table 10 above. Whilst family and friend related 
evictions/asking to leave, are the main reason for contact with 17.5%, this theme far lower than its 
equivalent total of 41.1% for homelessness presentations.  The second highest reason of under-
occupying property will be greatly, if not exclusively, driven by the changes to Housing Benefit 
entitlement in April 2013 for social properties, with households under-occupying possibly needing 
to cope with a 14 to 25% Housing Benefit reduction.  Themes relating to renting/ rent arears 
feature highly, as well as relationship breakdowns, however with leaving institutions being reduced 
in frequency when compared to homelessness presentations. The main causes for advice cases 
follow those of homelessness presentations; however the significant difference those households 
seeking advice due to under-occupation.  What is significant is the low number of owner occupiers 
threatened with possession of 3.4% compared to the level of home ownership illustrated in table 3. 
 

Agenda Page 37 Agenda Item 4



14 

Looking at the household composition of advice cases as demonstrated in the pie chart below 
(figure 5), just over 6 out of 10 (62%) were single person households, with a sizeable minority of 
almost 3 out of 10 (29%) having the dependent children or a household member pregnant.  A small 
minority of 9% of advice cases were couples or other household types made up of more than one 
adult with no dependants. 
 
Figure 5 
 

 
Source: Chorley Housing Options Data 

 
When looking at ages of advice cases, table 5 demonstrates a fairly even spread of ages apart 
from the older end of the spectrum. 
  

62% 

29% 

9% 

 Household Composition of Advice Cases 

One Person

Dependant
Children/Pregnant

Two plus Adults no
Dependants

Agenda Page 38 Agenda Item 4



15 

Table 11 
 

 
Source: Chorley Housing Options Data 

 
For single person advice cases, even though 35 to 54 year olds were more frequent, all age 
groups below 55 had fairly similar numbers of cases per the year of age group with 18 to 24 year 
olds being the highest.  For households with dependent children almost all cases were 19 to 54 
years olds, with 18 to 34 year olds having the highest number of cases per age group.  For 
households with 2 or more adults and no dependants the majority of these were in the 35 to 54 
year old age group.  The All Households section at the bottom of the table 11 doesn’t suggest a 
clear cohort of age groups under 55 which would justify significantly more resources to concentrate 
on. 

Households with One Person

Age of Household Member Advice Cases - Single % of Total Per year of Age Group
16 to 17 60 5.6% 30.0
18 to 24 234 21.6% 33.4
25 to 34 215 19.9% 21.5
35 to 54 443 41.0% 22.2
55 to 64 104 9.6% 10.4
65 plus 25 2.3% N/A

1081

Household with Dependant Child or Pregnant Household Member

Age Pricipal Household Member Advice Cases % of Total Per year of Age Group
16 to 17 9 1.8% 4.5
18 to 24 135 26.9% 19.3
25 to 34 178 35.5% 17.8
35 to 54 170 33.9% 8.5
55 to 64 8 1.6% 0.8
65 plus 1 0.2% N/A

501

Household Two or More Adults and no Dependant Children (includes couples possibly under 18)

Age Pricipal Household Member Advice Cases % of Total Per year of Age Group
16 to 17 3 1.8% 1.5
18 to 24 23 14.0% 3.3
25 to 34 15 9.1% 1.5
35 to 54 94 57.3% 4.7
55 to 64 20 12.2% 2.0
65 plus 9 5.5% N/A

164

All Households

Age Pricipal Household Member Advice Cases % of Total Per year of Age Group
16 to 17 72 4.1% 36.0
18 to 24 392 22.5% 56.0
25 to 34 408 23.4% 40.8
35 to 54 707 40.5% 35.4
55 to 64 132 7.6% 13.2
65 plus 35 2.0% N/A

1746

Agenda Page 39 Agenda Item 4



16 

Chorley has had a strong focus on preventing homelessness, and the numbers of preventions 
have seen steep increases over the last 3 years as illustrated in figure 6 below, rising from 214 
prevention and reliefs in 2011/12 by 278% to 808 in 2014/15. 
 
Figure 6 
 

 Source: 
Chorley Housing Options Data 

 
The figures above are reported quarterly in the P1E return to the DCLG.  Preventions and reliefs 
are carried out mainly by the Housing Options team, however other partners that the council funds 
can carry out preventions on its behalf.  A Homelessness Prevention is when a household is 
provided with some other way to meet its housing needs and related needs then becoming 
homeless, through positive action by the Council.  A Homelessness Relief is when a household 
has not been prevented from becoming homeless but housing has been assisted to secure 
accommodation even though the Council does not have a statutory duty to do so. 
 
The increase in presentations, whilst driven by higher numbers of advice cases to make them 
possible, is due to the hard work of the Housing Options team and its work with partners.  The 
large increase in advice cases and workload could have been a hindrance to prevention work, but 
it appears the Housing Options team has coped with this challenge very well. 
 
Preventions and reliefs are split into two main categories, ‘cases able to remain in existing home’ 
and ‘cases assisted to obtain alternative accommodation’, and of the 808n in 2014/15 these saw a 
fairly even split with 424 (52.5%) able to remain and 384 (47.5%) assisted into new 
accommodation.  Those assisted into new accommodation included 5 reliefs for 2014/15, and 
these are usually rare compared to the volume of preventions. 
  

Agenda Page 40 Agenda Item 4



17 

Broken down the reasons for preventions can be seen in table 12 below. 
 

Table 12 
 

Preventions and Reliefs 2014/15 Number  Percentage 

Proving other assistance to remain in Private or Social rented  197 24.4% 

Part 6 offer or nomination to Registered Provider 180 22.3% 

Resolving rent arears in Private or Social Rented 88 10.9% 

Supported Accommodation 83 10.3% 

Accessing PRS with no landlord incentive 51 6.3% 

Accessing PRS with landlord incentive 47 5.8% 

Resolving Housing Benefit problems 46 5.7% 

Sanctuary scheme 34 4.2% 

Mediation by trained family mediator 13 1.6% 

Conciliation including home visits 13 1.6% 

Mortgage advice or rescue 12 1.5% 

Debt advice 12 1.5% 

Accommodation arranged with friends/relatives 11 1.4% 

Any hostel or HMO 10 1.2% 

Negotiation/advocacy to remain in PRS 9 1.1% 

Social Housing management move 2 0.2% 

Total 808 100.0% 

      

Source: Chorley Housing Options Data 

 
The largest number of preventions consisted of ‘other assistance’ to remain in rented 
accommodation, whilst this reason is not explicit it does include a large number of Discretionary 
Housing Payment (DHP) awards, and cases which fit under no other category e.g. when a landlord 
is facing possession proceedings.  DHPs are awarded by Chorley council to assist benefit 
claimants who have a shortfall in their housing payments for a variety of reasons, and more 
recently have increased due to the reduction in housing benefit payments for tenants in social 
housing from April 2013.  The second highest prevention reason with just under a quarter is part 6 
offers or nominations to RPs, which are nearly all letting through the Select Move Choice Based 
Lettings partnership.  Resolving rent arrears, which represents over 10% of all preventions, is 
generally due to casework with some overlap with ‘resolving housing benefit problems’ 
representing almost 6% of preventions which also involve casework and internal liaison within the 
Council.  Enabling people into Supported Housing, also above 10% would include referrals to 
Supporting People funded Accommodation Based Support such as Cotswold Supported Housing.  
Cotswold Supported Housing is a Chorley Council owned and managed supported accommodation 
service for families and single people with support needs who are threatened with homelessness. 

Agenda Page 41 Agenda Item 4



18 

Cotswold Supported Housing has 25 units and is the principal means of proving temporary 
accommodation in Chorley. 
 
Accessing the PRS without an incentive scheme includes case work and an included an 
Accommodation Finding Service commissioned by Chorley Council using DCLG grant for South 
Lancashire )Chorley, Preston, South Ribble and West Lancashire), and with 51 prevention 
represented over 6% of the total.  Just under 6% of preventions were due to landlord incentives to 
access the PRS, which is facilitated by Chorley Council’s Rental Bond Scheme, which is a ‘paper 
bond’ administered by the Housing Options team.  Rental Bonds have increased year on year over 
the lifetime of the previous strategy; 27 in 2012/13, 39 in 2013/14 and 53 in 2014/15, however due 
to the nature of certain cases they may not always be a prevention or relief ‘type’, or be able to be 
considered a prevention/relief. The Sanctuary Scheme, which makes up just over 4% of 
preventions, is a scheme funded by South Ribble and Chorley councils, that assist survivors of 
domestic violence, remain in their own homes by providing safety measures.  Outside these top 8 
prevention types no other accounted for more than 1.6% in the 2014/15. 
 
Increases in numbers of preventions over the last 2 years are clearly demonstrated in figure 6, and 
the change is prevention types are also worth investigating.  Looking at the top 8 prevention types 
from 2014/15 and comparing this to the previous 3 years, including the percentage of total, as well 
as ‘rank’. 
 
Table 13 
 

 Source: Chorley Housing Options Data 

 
The numbers and percentage of other assistance to remain in rented has increased dramatically in 
the last 2 years, mainly due to DHP awards, and the increased budget for DHPs to mitigate benefit 
changes. Part 6 offers having been consistently growing in numbers even though the percentage 
of the total has been variable, and resolving rent arrears in PRS or RP properties has shot up over 
the last two years after seeing a very low point in 2012/13.  Supported Accommodation preventions 
have seen solid year on year growth even though the percentage of the total has wavered. 
Accessing PRS with no incentive has gone from a very low figure of 3 four years ago to 
consistently over 50 in the last 2 years, and accessing PRS with an incentive has grown in 
numbers every year but the percentage of the total hasn’t.  Resolving Housing Benefit problems 
has seen the biggest fall in the last year, however this could be due to overlapping categories with 
resolving rent arrears and providing other assistance increasing rapidly.   The Sanctuary Scheme 
figures have consistently grown each year, but like a lot of other types of prevention the 
percentage hasn’t due to large increases in other categories.   In general work to help households 
access or remain in rented accommodation has been key to the increasing level of preventions. 
 
Chorley’s prevention performance compared with both in Lancashire and regionally in 2014/15 with 
17.2 per 1000 households, which was the 6th highest out of the 39 North West authorities and 2nd 
highest in the Lancashire grouping.  The figure of 17.2 was well above the North West mean 
average of 9.4 and median of 7.4, and even further above the Lancashire mean average 7.0 of and 
median of 6.6.  Chorley’s very strong performance delivering preventions compared to other Local 
Authorities in the Lancashire area can been seen in table 14 below. 
 

Number % Rank Number % Rank Number % Rank Number % Rank

Proving other assistance to remain in Private or Social rented 197 24.4% 1 150 20.9% 1 44 12.9% 2 26 12.1% 4

Part 6 offer or nomination to RP 180 22.3% 2 136 19.0% 2 101 29.7% 1 42 19.6% 1

Resolving rent arears in Private or Social Rented 88 10.9% 3 46 6.4% 6 1 0.3% 15 13 6.1% 6

Supported Accommodation 83 10.3% 4 60 8.4% 4 41 12.1% 3 31 14.5% 2

Accessing PRS with no landlord incentive 51 6.3% 5 52 7.3% 5 22 6.5% 6 3 1.4% 13

Accessing PRS with landlord incentive 47 5.8% 6 34 4.7% 7 27 7.9% 4 11 5.1% 7

Resolving Housing Benefit problems 46 5.7% 7 76 10.6% 3 11 3.2% 10 4 1.9% 11

Sanctuary scheme 34 4.2% 8 24 3.4% 10 24 7.1% 5 11 5.1% 7

Most Common Prevention and Relief Types 2014/15 

Compared with Previous Years

2014/15 2013/14 2012/13 2011/12

Agenda Page 42 Agenda Item 4



19 

Table 14 
 
 

Preventions and Reliefs in the Lancashire Area by Local Authority 2014/15 

Local Authority Total Preventions and Reliefs Rate per 1,000 Households 

Lancaster 1,035 17.62 

Chorley 808 17.23 

Blackburn with Darwen 477 8.23 

Preston 469 8.05 

Blackpool 494 7.67 

Wyre 324 6.75 

Rossendale 199 6.70 

South Ribble 302 6.44 

Pendle 225 5.92 

Hyndburn 183 5.33 

Burnley 197 5.23 

Fylde 59 1.66 

Ribble Valley 23 0.93 

West Lancashire 30 0.65 
Source: DCLG Data 

 
The prevention types demonstrate the activities carried out for any purposes of homelessness 
prevention and securing accommodation, and the rising volumes would suggest these activities are 
on whole successful. 
 

Resources and Support Available 
 
The main resource to prevent homelessness and assist homeless people to be housed is the 
Housing Options team based at the Civic Offices, Union Street, Chorley, which consists of the 
following: 
 
2.4  x Housing Options Officers 
1     x Court and Welfare Officer 
1     x Housing Options Team Leader 
1     x Housing Options and Support Manager 
 
The vast majority of the prevention work in Chorley, is instigated by the Housing Options team, and 
as demonstrated in the ‘preventions’ section around half of the households prevented from 
becoming homeless are assisted to remain in existing accommodation.  Increasingly DHP 
payments and resolving rent or benefit issues are used to keep households in their current homes, 
and these types of prevention need to utilise the Single Front Office Service, in particular the 
Customer Appeals Officer. 
 
Finding RP accommodation through Select Move is the most common prevention type when 
assisting households to find new accommodation and the largest RPs in Chorley are as follow in 
order of having the most stock: 
 

 Chorley Community Housing (including all Adactus Housing Group stock managed) 

 Places for People 

 Accent 

 Progress Housing Group 

 Symphony 

 Your Housing Group 

Agenda Page 43 Agenda Item 4



20 

 
The use of Temporary accommodation is also a key prevention measure, and Cotswold Supported 
Housing, owned and managed by the Council is the largest contributor to this.  Cotswold is an 
accommodation based support service for single adults and families, it has 25 rooms for residents 
with the majority of facilities shared.  Cotswold is commissioned by the Lancashire Supporting 
People Partnership from Lancashire County Council mainstream funding.  Chorley and the 11 
other Housing Authority districts, along with representatives from probation, have worked with the 
County Council to commission a number of accommodation based services that the Housing 
Options Team is able to refer to.  These services provide support to enable residents to move on to 
more independent accommodation and successfully maintain their future tenancies, and can be 
seen by ‘Client Group’ below: 
 

Client Group Units 

People with mental health problems 27 

Families and single people who are homeless with support needs 25 

People with and offending history 23 

Young People at risk (18 to 25 years old) 18 

Teenage Parents (16 to 25 years old) 6 

Women at risk of domestic abuse 3 

 
On top of the above there are 14 units of Supported Lodgings (provided by host households) for 
young people aged 16 to 25 across Chorley, Preston, South Ribble and West Lancashire districts, 
as well as a floating support contract covering the same area which helps clients remain in their 
existing tenancies, or supports them in new ones.  It can been seen by the above housing related 
support services that there is a heavy focus on young adults to match which matches the need 
demonstrated earlier in the review. 
 
Chorley Council commissions a twice weekly 16/17 year old drop in twice a week, which is 
operated by a 3rd sector organisation and also attended by a representative from the County 
Council’s Children’s Social Care service.  A Sanctuary Scheme is joint commissioned with South 
Ribble to assist survivors of domestic violence remain in their own homes via safety measures.  A 
charity, Help the Homeless, provides complimentary advice and assistance to households 
threatened with homelessness who the Council would not have a statutory duty to help.  Chorley 
Council provides a small amount of funding to Help the Homeless, and there is a Service Level 
Agreement between the two organisations resulting in Help the Homeless contributing to the 
Council’s preventions and reliefs.  
 
Other organisations help people threatened with homelessness in the borough but don’t count 
towards the Council’s preventions, such as the Citizens Advice Bureau who provide independent 
housing and debt advice, and Christian organisations also provide food related assistance. 
 
The Council commissioned an accommodation finding service on behalf of South Lancashire  
(Chorley, Preston, South Ribble and West Lancashire) which was very successful in assisting ‘non-
priority’ homeless households find tenancies in the private rented sector, and in its first year (to end 
Nov 2014) 42 new tenancies were created with 42 in Chorley.  The service ended in January 2015 
for services outside the Council’s control, however money has been secured to set up a Chorley 
only service and this is a priority for the Council. 
 
 

Agenda Page 44 Agenda Item 4



21 

This section demonstrates the resources available to prevent people from becoming homeless, to 
assist with rehousing and the housing related support available to prevent homelessness in the 
borough.  A robust offer is exhibited to assist households who are homeless or threatened with 
homelessness, and the strategy section will endeavour to sustain and improve the offer. 
 

Temporary Accommodation 
 
When a household makes a homeless application the Council must offer them temporary 
accommodation if they have nowhere else to stay. This accommodation may consist of a flat, 
house, bedsit, and hostel or, in some limited circumstances, a ‘bed and breakfast’ hotel.  The use 
of ‘bed and breakfast’ as temporary accommodation has been all but eradicated with no usage at 
all since 2012/13.  Chorley Council utilises Cotswold Supported Housing to provide temporary 
accommodation in almost all circumstances. 
 
In 2005 the Government published a 5 Yeas strategy to tackle homelessness, in which it required 
Local Authorities to half the use of temporary accommodation by 31/12/2010 compared to their 
31/12/2004 figure.  Chorley Council’s had a 2004 baseline temporary accommodation figure of 26 
and therefore the target was 13 for the end of 2010, which the Council achieved returning a figure 
of 6.  As can be seen below in figure 7, the figures for temporary accommodation have fluctuated 
over the last 4 years, however as can be seen by the trend line a general decline in the number of 
households in temporary accommodation is indicated.  There is no prescribed target for temporary 
accommodation, however over the last 6 quarters up to the end of 2014/15, it can be seen that the 
temporary accommodation figure has stayed consistently below the 2010 target of 13. 
 
Figure 7 
 

 
Source: Chorley Housing Options Data 

  

Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4

2011/12 2012/13 2013/14 2014/15

TA Households 12 20 20 22 19 22 13 11 14 15 9 8 11 6 4 12

0

5

10

15

20

25

N
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 

H
o

u
s
e
h

o
ld

s
 

Temporary Accommodation by Quarter 

Agenda Page 45 Agenda Item 4



22 

Review of the Prevention of Homelessness Strategy 2012-16 
 
The success factors from the 2012-16 Strategy were stated as the following: 
 
1) Improving our service for customers  
2) Reducing the use of temporary accommodation 
3) Increasing the prevention of homelessness  
 
Improving the service for customers can be measured in many ways.  In the last quarter of 
2012 customer satisfaction with Housing Options was at 72%, whilst in the summer of 2015 this 
had increased to 81%.   There has been a demonstrable increase in social housing lets, as well as 
the number of new social homes delivered through development as illustrated earlier in the 
document.  An Accommodation Finding Service and a Youth Homelessness Drop-in have been 
commissioned to provide a more targeted year diverse offer, and whilst the number of households 
given advice and assistance had increased drastically, the numbers of housing requiring 
homelessness presentation and found to be statutory homeless has dropped. 

 
Reducing the use of temporary accommodation is demonstrated in the section above with a 
demonstrable downward trend over the period of the strategy, and coupled with that, the 
eradication of ‘bed and breakfast’ use with no instances after 202/13. 
 
Increasing the prevention of homelessness is clearly demonstrated by figure 6 due to a near 
four-fold increase in preventions from 214 in 2011/12 to 808 in 2014/15. 
As well as performance figures demonstrating significant improvements since the last strategy, the 
majority of actions were also delivered successfully.  Table 15 demonstrates the actions that have 
already been delivered from the 2012-16 Strategy. 
 
Table 15 

 

Actions Successfully Delivered from the 2012-16 Strategy 

Actions Outcome  

Develop a web based Housing Directory 
including a self-service enhanced housing 
option tool. 
 

An enhanced housing options module is now 
available via Selectmove.co.uk, including. links 
to job sites  

Utilise the enhanced options service to link into 
services providing job opportunities. 
 

An Employability Officer proactively picks up 
these cases since appointment in Feb 2014. 

Update and improve existing IT systems for 
Homelessness that link in with existing housing 
applications. 
 

New homelessness software implemented and 
in use since October 2013. 

Establishment of a specific young person’s 
service including mediation and advice. 

Drop-in now established 2 days a week with Key 
and Social Services, referral procedures, 
information sharing and SLA in place along with 
funding until 2016. 
 

Review of the Sanctuary Scheme The scheme was reviewed and relaunched in 
2012 with buy in from RP partners. 
 

Review of the sub regional Allocation Policy 
(Select Move) to accommodate Localism Act 
2011 provisions and ensure best use of local 
stock 

A new policy was written and passed through 
political processes in 2013, and came into force 
Feb 2014.   

Agenda Page 46 Agenda Item 4



23 

Actions Successfully Delivered from the 2012-16 Strategy 

Actions Outcome  

 

Explore the feasibility of remodelling an 
existing Accommodation Based Service for a 
bespoke service for 16/17. 

The feasibility has been explored however this 
would need extra funding for the provider and 
would not be possible with Local Government 
spending cuts. 
 

Participate and contribute to the Working 
Together With families Project. 
 

Housing Options hand an active involvement 
until the project ended. 

Engage in the ‘No Second Night Out ‘initiative 
lead by Foxton Centre following award of 
£197k homeless transition funding. 

Chorley Council signed up to No Second Night 
Out, and actively follows up any reported 
sightings of people Rough Sleeping to offer 
assistance. 
 

Develop a Tenancy Strategy, work with 
Lancashire project team and then provide 
strategy for each borough.  
 

The Chorley Council Tenancy Strategy was 
adopted in Nov 2012 and is reviewed 
periodically.   

Work with partners to explore Empty Homes 
Initiatives. 

Two empty buildings in the town centre were 
converted into 16 x 1 bedroom flats by RPs with 
Chorley Council capital funding.  The flats were 
let in 2015 to under 35 year olds.  A further 3 
bungalows replacing a derelict former Children’s 
Home.   
 

Review prevention measures and procedures 
including prevention pot and rental bond to 
ensure remain relevant and are maximising 
take up. 

The Prevention Pot procedure has been 
reviewed and amended due to staffing changes 
and new job titles, and the procedure is fit for 
purpose. The Rental Bond Scheme has been 
reviewed, and procedures amended in regard to 
recording bond applications and the introduced 
a claim procedure.  The bond applications have 
seen an increase. 
 

Effectively manage existing contracts including 
making initial contact and arranging review 
meetings as necessary with : 

 Help the Homeless 

 16/17 year olds KEY 

 Out of Hours ( NPHA) 

 Sanctuary 
 

Following engagement, monitoring and changes 
to contracts/SLAs, working relationships have 
improved and the number of preventions 
assisted with have drastically increased.   

Ensure prevention agenda is supported 
through wider corporate partnership 
arrangements. 

Protocols are in place for Hospital and Prison 
leavers, there is representation on the Children’s 
Partnership Board and the Health and Wellbeing 
partnership at a senior management level. 
 

To Deliver the Councils Corporate Project of 
local solutions for homelessness. These 
include marketing of a proactive service, 
exploring outreach services. 
 

Outreach in Clayton Brook moderately 
successful after need highlighted. 

Agenda Page 47 Agenda Item 4



24 

Actions Successfully Delivered from the 2012-16 Strategy 

Actions Outcome  

Work with relevant agencies to ensure that 
appropriate gateways are developed to assist 
in the reduction of welfare dependency. 

Welfare Reform Manager and Officer, and 
Employability Officer have been working with 
Benefits, Policy, RPs, DWP and third sector. 
Including budgeting, digital inclusion and 
employability work. Homelessness preventions 
increased significantly. 
 

Explore provision of cross tenure older persons 
housing related support. 

Cross tenure housing related supported was 
piloted in the east of the county with low 
demand from customers and little appetite from 
the RPs to provide such a service.  Local 
Government cuts make further exploration 
unfeasible. 
 

Develop a Peer Education Project for 
Homelessness. 

Initial sessions successfully piloted in targeted 
schools with good feedback, and similar session 
are planned in t the future 
 

Lead on the coordination and delivery of the 
Single Homelessness Funding Initiative for 
Lancashire To include; a Personalised 
Solutions Policy and pot, Pilot of House 
shares, Single Persons Accommodation 
Finding Service and Pre-Tenancy Training. 
 

All services commissioned December 2013 to 
November 2015 along with Personalised 
Solutions Policy being implemented in 2013. 

Develop effective working relationship with 
Revenues and Benefits Team 

The Housing Options team has been working 
well with benefits, especially due to introduction 
of new Welfare Reform officer specialising in this 
area. 
 

Develop and coordinate a strategic response 
to welfare reform. 

The Welfare Reform Manager has led on 
creating effective working relationships. 
 

Develop and oversee the introduction of a 
floating support drop in service at the Civic 
Offices on Union Street. 

A drop in has been successfully piloted one day 
a week, as then continued following the re-
contracting of floating support in 2015. 
 

Review frontline delivery and explore ways to 
maximise resource and improve customer 
experience. 
 

A Housing Options drop in on Wednesday has 
been implemented and is proving a success. 

To review service for customers at risk of 
mortgage repossession and explore solutions 
for improving services. 

Chorley Council’s Welfare Reform Officer 
(appointed Feb 2014) is proactive in contacting 
and working with these customers, including a 
successful court desk. 
 

Explore the current debt advice services to 
ensure they are sufficient to assist with 
homelessness prevention 

Budgeting and debt advice is given by Calico 
(floating Support), CAB, Lancashire Wellbeing 
Service, and Chorley Council’s now has a 
Welfare Reform Office who also assists in this 
area. 
 

Agenda Page 48 Agenda Item 4



25 

 
The following actions from the 2012-16 Strategy were not completed and table 16 below 
demonstrates why, and if the actions are to be carried over to the 2016-19 Strategy. 
 
Table 16 
 

Actions from the 2012-16 Strategy Not Delivered 

Actions Outcome Carry Forward? 

Yes/No 

To explore the development a system 
for discharging legal duties in to the 
Private Rented Sector including 
support for landlords. 

The Council has decided it more 
prudent to discharge to social 
sector only for the foreseeable 
future. 

No. 

Expand the Choice Based Lettings 
Scheme to include advertisement of all 
tenures. 

This was explored however was 
not feasible due to a lack of 
demand from the Private Sector 
landlords. 

No. 

Undertake DCLG Self-Assessment 
Toolkit peer Review and apply for Gold 
Standard service. 

Partner Councils were not found 
that were willing to take part in a 
peer review, and the benefits 
are striving for Gold Standard 
were outweighed by the 
resources necessary to achieve 
it. 

No. 

 

Strategic Priorities of the Prevention of Homelessness Strategy 2016-19 
 
Following the review of homeliness and taking into account future and existing challenges, in 
particularly linked to welfare reform, the following strategic priorities have been devised.  Actions to 
achieve these priorities are illustrated in the action plan in Appendix A. 
 
Priority 1: Working with all partners to ensure the offer of support, advice and assistance in Chorley 
best meets the needs of people who are homeless or threatened with homelessness.  This 
includes working with statutory and third sector organisation who provide the following: 
 

 Accommodation Based Support providers and commissioner/s; 
 

 Floating Support provider/s and commissioner/s; 
 

 Drop in housing advice/intervention services; 
 

 Accommodation finding service/s; 
 

 Mediation services; 
 

 Non-statutory housing advice services; 
 

 Wellbeing services; 
 

 Children’s Social Care (Lancashire County Council). 
  

Agenda Page 49 Agenda Item 4



26 

A key focus of this priority is youth homelessness as identified in the review 16/17 year olds and 
then other under 25 year far more likely to present as homeless than older age groups.  Over half 
the instances of 16/17 year old homelessness presentations are due to parents no longer willing to 
accommodate, which reinforces the importance of the 16/17 year olds drop-in and mediation 
service as well as the ‘Joint Working Protocol for Homeless 16/17’.  The most prolific method of 
homelessness preventions identified by the review was ‘other assistance’ to remain in rented 
accommodation, and when looked at more closely this mainly due to DHP payments, and 
emphasises the importance of a close working relationship with the Council’s Single Front Office 
service.  With demanding budget cuts to Local Authorities at all levels, working with the County 
Council to ensure a there is an adequate supply of housing related support services in the borough 
will become a bigger challenge. 
 
Priority 2: Ensure that housing supply best meets housing need.  This involves working with RPs 
regarding the allocation of existing stock, as well as the facilitation and the determination of new 
social housing which reflects the needs of the borough, including bespoke solutions where 
necessary. 
 
As demonstrated in the review, the main prevention type for households ‘assisted into new 
accommodation’ was part 6 offers of social housing, and emphases the importance of working with 
RPs to ensure lettings meet housing need and therefore prevent or relieve homelessness.  The 
second most common reason for advice cases is ‘under-occupying property’ and this is almost 
entirely due to the Housing Benefit changes to social tenants in 2013, and this highlights the 
significance of building social housing that reflects the most acute demand for smaller properties 
on the Housing Register.  The needs of Chorley’s ageing population also need taking into account, 
as well as people with disabilities or more bespoke housing needs.  When working with planning 
regarding developer contributions/s.106 agreements, supporting RP’s HCA bids, or investigating 
new developments on Council sites, need identified by the Housing Register and partners needs to 
be taken into account. 
 
Priority 3: Enhance the depth and range of Housing Options services to meet current and future 
challenges.  This involves measures to mitigate current and future welfare changes, early 
identification of and assistance to affected households, as well as related challenges such as the 
move to public sector digitalisation and legal changes. 
 
The Welfare Reform and Work Bill 2015 will intensify the pressure on the Housing Options team, 
and in particular changes to the benefit cap and tax credits will increase the need for budgetary 
advice and assistance, and engaging with potential customers at the earliest possible stage 
working with associated agencies and services through the Welfare Reform Partnership is key.  
Digital Inclusion initiatives are needed to ensure certain households, and all Housing Options staff 
need to be able to adapt to meet the requirements of Supreme Court judgements earlier in the 
year.  Working with private landlords will also be important using the Council’s Rental Bond 
Scheme and promotion through the Private Landlord Forum, so the landlords are engaged and 
work with the Housing Options team and Accommodation Finding service in the process of being 
commissioned.  Accessing the PRS whether without or with landlord incentives are the 5th and 6th 
most common prevention types, and with the Starter Homes and social sector rent reductions 
threatening the future supply of social housing, the PRS may become more necessary to engage 
and utilise than ever before.  
 
Priority 4: Employment, training and education related to homelessness. The loss of employment 
can be both a casualty and cause of homelessness, and this priority involves helping people who 
are homeless, threatened with homelessness or in housing need into employment, training or 
education.  Gaining employment considered the most robust way to protect a household from 
current and future welfare reform measures.  Also this priority involves education regarding 
homelessness at an early age a prevention tool. 
 

Agenda Page 50 Agenda Item 4



27 

Changes to benefits in the Welfare Reform and Work Bill 2015 have increased the importance of 
people in all household types gaining employment, or empowering themselves through training and 
education to gain improved prospects of employment.  The Council’s Employability Officer will 
become in increased demand to provide assistance to people looking for work including those who 
are located in homelessness related supported accommodation.  Early intervention to assist 
people who haven’t been referred but may need help will also be necessary to enhance the 
employability offer.  The emphasis on employment, education and training will be of acute 
importance to 18 to 21 year olds claiming UC who will lose their entitlement after 6 months if they 
do not engage in work related training or placements.  Educating people about homelessness at an 
early age is important, along with an emphasis on staying in education to improve their 
employment prospects, illustrating pitfalls of relying on benefits or leaving home at an early age.  A 
School Education project will be a key initiative, targeting schools from which former students are 
most likely to present as homeless in future years as an early prevention tool. 
 

Governance of the Strategy 
 
All the directors at Chorley Council fully sign up and committed to this Prevention of Homelessness 
Strategy, and there is an organisation pledge to from the Council to work with all partners to ensure 
the priorities of the strategy are delivered. 
The Strategic Housing Management Team will be responsible for ensuring that this strategy 
including its action plan is delivered over the next four years, and the action plan will be reviewed 
every year and revised if necessary. 
 

The Prevention of Homelessness in Chorley 
 
Chorley Council, as demonstrated in the review, are preforming very well in its attempts to prevent 
households becoming homeless, with increasing numbers every year and the second highest 
number of preventions in the Lancashire area per 1000 households.  The Council will continue to 
carry out current prevention activities and strengthen these by measures listed in the action plan.  
The preventions section in the review, and also the resources section looks in more detail at 
prevention activities and the work that the Housing Options team and its partners is involved in to 
ensure preventions take place, however the numbers of preventions are largely dependent on the 
number of households seeking advice or assistance, and therefore one of the success measures 
of this strategy will be to ensure that there are 150 preventions a quarter as a minimum target and 
therefore sustained at a high level. 
 

Securing Accommodation 
 
For those households that there is a duty for the Council to find interim accommodation awaiting 
more permanent accommodation or a homelessness decision, Cotswold Supported Housing will 
be utilised.  As Cotswold is owned and managed by the Council, the accommodation based 
service is normally used if there is a homelessness applicant who is in need of accommodation, 
and often on an emergency basis.  The use of ‘Bed and Breakfast’ hotels has been eliminated 
since 2012/13, and would only be considered in extreme cases in the future. 
 
To find secure long term accommodation the Council works with the Select Move partnership, and 
for households who don’t qualify for Select Move, assistance will be given to find PRS 
accommodation such as Rental Bonds, and Chorley’s new Accommodation Finding Service which 
is the process of being commissioned.  The Council’s track record in finding new accommodation, 
demonstrated by the number of preventions and the volume of lets via Select Move rising each 
year, suggests no deficiencies in its approach to secure accommodation, and measures in the 
action plan identify how securing accommodation can be improved further. 
 

Agenda Page 51 Agenda Item 4



28 

Securing Support 
 
As detailed in the review Chorley Council works with Lancashire County Council’s Supporting 
People Partnership to commission housing related support services, mainly accommodation 
based, to meet the needs of a variety of ‘client groups’, in particular younger people.  The Council 
will continue to work with the County Council where there is opportunity to do so, in order to 
maintain a high standard of housing related support services in the borough. 
 
Chorley Council will review all agreements for services it commissions or funds to ensure they are 
high quality and value for money, and all will be looked at over the duration of the strategy as 
detailed in the action plan. 
 

Success Factors 
 
The success of this strategy, including the action plan, will be measured on the following factors: 
 
1. Keeping the number of preventions consistently high – Target of 150 plus per quarter; 
 
2. Ensuring the number of households in Temporary Accommodation remains low, and ‘Bed 

and Breakfast’ continues to be eliminated  – Target a maximum of 13 at any one time in 
Temporary Accommodation and nil ‘Bed and Breakfast’ (subject to risk). 

 
3. The numbers of statutory homeless households remain low – Target of no more than 10 per 

year. 
 

The review highlighted Chorley’s performance preventing homelessness has improved 
dramatically over the period of the last strategy, and the focus of the strategy will be to maintain the 
good performance and seek to improve wherever practicable. 
 

Future Challenges 
 
The main challenge as detailed earlier is likely to be poised by the effects of the Welfare Reform 
and Work Bill 2015, and whilst the impact of the measures is not known, it is possible to make 
some degree of estimate in certain areas.  For example the changes to the benefit cap will mean 
the number of households with reduced benefit payments is likely to be in the hundreds as 
opposed to low double figures currently affected.  The Council must reinforce its approach to 
welfare reform, acting proactively to prevent households presenting as homeless, and this 
approach starts with an employment/training and budgeting focus, as well as ensuring people are 
empowered to access digital services. 
 
The planned rent reduction to social tenancies, and the spectre of ‘starter homes’ in the housing an 
planning bill has led to uncertainty in the future of the supply of new social housing, and this is 
likely to be exacerbated by the extension of Right to Buy discounts to all social tenants.  Therefore 
the supply of future social housing needs to be targeted as much as is practical to meet need, and 
there may be more of a reliance on the PRS so the Council will endeavour to maximise 
relationships with private landlords.  The Council is mindful of Government spending cuts, not only 
at district but at County Council level, and there is a threat to services which provide housing and 
homeless related support.  Coping with future changes whilst maintaining an adequate offer of 
support could be the biggest challenge the council will face in its mission to prevent homeless. 

Agenda Page 52 Agenda Item 4



29 

Appendix A – Action Plan 
Priority 1:   
Working with all partners to ensure the offer of support, advice and assistance in Chorley best meets the needs of homeless or threatened with homelessness 

 Key Action Key Milestones By When  Resources  Action Lead Outcomes Link to Corporate 
Strategy 

1. Review the Joint Working 
Protocol for Homeless 
16/17 year olds with 
CSC. 

Meet with CSC. 
 
Agree a new protocol. 

 
 
31/03/2017 

Housing Options 
team. 

Housing Options and 
Support Manager 

Improved partnership working to 
allow 16/17 year olds threatened 
with homelessness less likely to 
need to make a Homeless 
Presentation or be a ‘Child in 
Need’. 
 

An ambitious 
council that does 
more to meet the 
needs of residents 
and the local area.  

2.  
 
 
 

Review and 
recommission 16/17 year 
old drop in and mediation 
service and 
recommission the 
service. 
 

Review current service 
performance. 
 
Review expected 
outcomes. 
 
If appropriate 
recommission with 
adherence to 
Procurement Policy. 
 

31/12/2015 
 
 
 
31/01/2016 
 
 
31/03/2016 

Housing Options 
team. 
 

Housing Options and 
Support Manager. 

Reduced homelessness 
presentations from 16/17 year 
olds.  

An ambitious 
council that does 
more to meet the 
needs of residents 
and the local area. 

3. Liaise with Lancashire 
County Council regarding 
the commissioning of any 
future housing related 
support services and 
related future challenges.  
 
 

Ongoing engagement 
with LCC. 
 
 
Review successfulness 
of action. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
31/03/2019 

Strategic Housing 
Service. 

Strategic Housing 
Officer. 

Ensure an adequate housing 
related support offer exists in 
Chorley. 

An ambitious 
council that does 
more to meet the 
needs of residents 
and the local area. 

4.  Steering the Welfare 
Reform Partnership to 
mitigate future benefit 
changes. 

Work with partners to 
estimate the impact of 
cuts (e.g. lowering of 
benefit cap and 
changes to tax credits). 
 
Implement measures 
as a partnership to 
mitigate the impact of 
the cuts. 
 

31/03/2016 
 
 
 
 
 
 
31/03/2017 

Housing Options 
team, DWP, RPs, 
Single Front office 
CC 

Housing Options and 
Support Manager. 

Affected households will be 
contacted at an early stage to 
allow prevention work. 

An ambitious 
council that does 
more to meet the 
needs of residents 
and the local area. 

A
genda P

age 53
A

genda Item
 4



30 

 Key Action Key Milestones By When  Resources  Action Lead Outcomes Link to Corporate 
Strategy 

5. Review Early Intervention 
Protocol between the 
Council and RPs for 
Tenants at risk of 
eviction. 
 

Review current protocol 
and outcomes. 
 
Draft and agree 
refreshed protocol 

30/06/2016 
 
 
 
31/12/2016 

Housing Options 
team. 

Court and Welfare 
Officer. 

Household threatened with 
eviction are engaged earlier 
increasing the likelihood of 
preventions. 

An ambitious 
council that does 
more to meet the 
needs of residents 
and the local area. 

6. Trial a Supported 
Housing Referral Panel  

Book initial meetings. 
 
Review usefulness of 
panel. 

31/03/2016 
 
 
31/03/2017 
 

Housing Options 
team and all 
housing related 
support providers. 

Housing Options 
Team Leader. 

Supported Accommodation 
placements are more beneficial 
leading to more successful move-
ons.  

An ambitious 
council that does 
more to meet the 
needs of residents 
and the local area. 

7. Review Lancashire 
Reducing Re-offending 
Housing and 
Resettlement Protocol 
due to new probation 
arrangements. 

Ongoing engagement 
with panel. 
 
 
Review successfulness 
of action. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
31/03/2019 

Resettlement 
Service, LCC, 
District Housing 
Officers, NPS 
&CRC. 

Housing Options and 
Support Manager. 

Engage with prison leavers at an 
early to prevent homelessness 
presentations. 

An ambitious 
council that does 
more to meet the 
needs of residents 
and the local area. 

8. Review Sanctuary 
Scheme for survivors of 
domestic violence. 
 
 

Review current service 
performance. 
 
Review expected 
outcomes. 
 
If appropriate 
recommission with 
adherence to 
Procurement Policy. 
 

31/12/2015 
 
 
 
31/01/2016 
 
 
31/03/2016 

Housing Options 
team. 
 

Housing Options and 
Support Manager. 

Reduced homelessness 
presentations from domestic 
violence survivors.  

Clean, safe and 
healthy 
communities. 

9. 
 

Review Help the 
Homeless’ Service Level 
Agreement. 

Review current service 
performance. 
 
Review expected 
outcomes. 
 
If appropriate 
recommission with 
adherence to 
Procurement Policy. 
 

31/12/2015 
 
 
 
31/01/2016 
 
 
31/03/2016 

Housing Options 
team. 
 

Housing Options and 
Support Manager. 

Increase the number of 
preventions facilitated by Help the 
Homeless, and rough sleeping 
instances reduced. 

Clean, safe and 
healthy 
communities. 

A
genda P

age 54
A

genda Item
 4



31 

 Key Action Key Milestones By When  Resources  Action Lead Outcomes Link to Corporate 
Strategy 

10. Liaise with the Single 
Front Office service when 
the Discretionary 
Housing Payment Policy 
is reviewed. 

Fully input into policy 
when reviewed.  

31/03/2017 Housing Options 
team 

Court and Welfare 
Officer. 

High numbers of DHP related 
preventions are sustained. 

An ambitious 
council that does 
more to meet the 
needs of residents 
and the local area. 

11. Linking into the health 
and public sector reforms 

Raise profile of 
Homelessness and 
benefits of preventing 
homelessness with 
health partners 

31/03/2017 Strategic Housing 
Service 

Head of Housing. Health partners more aware of 
benefits of housing and prevention 
homelessness to health with the 
possibility of prevention funding 
considered. 

Clean, safe and 
healthy 
communities. 

Priority 2: 

Ensure that housing supply best meets housing need 

 Key Action Key Milestones By When  Resources  Action Lead Outcomes Link to Corporate 
Strategy 

12. Work with the Select 
Move partnership to 
ensure current stock best 
meets housing need. 
 
 
 
 

Engage and input into 
the review of the Select 
Move policy. 
 
Monitor Select Move 
allocations following 
policy changes. 

31/03/2016 
 
 
 
 
31/03/2017 
 
 

Strategic Housing 
Officer. 
 

Housing Options and 
Support Manager. 

Increased percentages of lets to 
reasonable preference categories 
to households with a Chorley 
connection. 

Involving residents 
in improving their 
local area and 
equality of access 
for all. 

13. Ensure new affordable 
housing delivered best 
meets housing need. 

Monitor both need on 
the Housing Register 
and demand from bids 
on Housing Register, in 
order to inform 
requirements for social 
housing on s.106 and 
other developer 
contributions. Review 
on at least an annual 
basis.  
 

31/03/2016 
 
31/03/2017 
 
31/03/2018 
 
31/03/2019 

Legal Team CC and 
Development 
Control CC. 

Strategic Housing 
Officer. 
 

New social housing through 
developer contributions is in 
increased demand as it is more 
conducive to meeting housing 
need. 

An ambitious 
council that does 
more to meet the 
needs of residents 
and the local area. 

A
genda P

age 55
A

genda Item
 4



32 

 Key Action Key Milestones By When  Resources  Action Lead Outcomes Link to Corporate 
Strategy 

14. Use council assets and to 
meet housing need 

Review council assets 
available. 
 
Liaise with RPs 
 
Site/s developed 
 

31/12/2015 
 
 
31/03/2016 
 
31/06/2016 

RPs, 
 Head of Housing, 
Strategic Housing 
Officer,   
Legal Team CC, 
Property Services 
CC,  
Development 
Control CC, 
Planning Policy CC. 
 

Director of Customer 
and Advice Services 

High demand properties delivered 
that meet housing need. 

An ambitious 
council that does 
more to meet the 
needs of residents 
and the local area. 

15. Have regards to older 
peoples housing needs 
when developing new 
affordable housing. 

Ensure bungalows are 
delivered as part of any 
site of a site or nature 
that allows it to be 
viable. 
 

31/03/2019 
 
 
 
 

Legal Team CC and 
Development 
Control CC. 

Strategic Housing 
Officer 

The supply of new social 
bungalows is continuous over the 
life of the development. 

Clean, safe and 
healthy 
communities. 

16.  Develop a centrally 
located Extra Care 
Scheme in Chorley to 
meet identified housing, 
support & care needs for 
older people whilst 
assisting the to live 
independently. 

Secure funding. 
 
Obtain planning 
permission and start on 
site. 
 
Complete scheme. 

31/12/2015 
 
31/03/2016 
 
 
 
31/03/2018 

HCA 
Lancashire CC 
Legal Team CC, 
Property Services 
CC,  
Development 
Control CC, 
Planning Policy CC. 
Finance CC 
 

Head of Housing. 65 unit scheme reaching practical 
completion by the end of March 
2018. 

Clean, safe and 
healthy 
communities. 

17.  Bespoke new build 
properties to meets the 
specific needs of 
customers with 
disabilities where 
adaptations are not 
reasonably practicable 

Identify need. 
 
Identify suitable 
pipeline properties. 
 
Liaise with RPs. 
 
1

st
 phase of properties 

complete. 
 

31/03/2016 
 
 
30/06/2016 
 
30/09/2016 
 
31/03/2018 

Housing Options 
Team Leader. 
Strategic Housing 
Officer. 

Team Leader (Private 
Sector) 

Need and properties are adapted 
at an early stage to enable 
customers’ needs to be met. 

Clean, safe and 
healthy 
communities. 

18. Have regard to the 
housing needs of ‘care’ 
groups when delivering 
affordable housing 
particularly with the move 
towards self-contained 
accommodation. 

Liaise with LCC 
commissioners for LD, 
MH, PDSI. 
 
Agree way forward and 
consider all options. 
 

30/06/2016 
 
 
31/12/2016 

Strategic Housing 
Officer.  
 

Director of Customer 
and Advice Services. 

Options and need identified for 
care groups.  

Clean, safe and 
healthy 
communities. 

A
genda P

age 56
A

genda Item
 4



33 

Priority 3: 
Enhance the depth and range of Housing Options services to meet current and future challenges. 

 Key Action Key Milestones By When  Resources  Action Lead Outcomes Link to Corporate 
Strategy 

19. Ensure staff are trained 
to face new challenges 
following all new 
legislation case law. 

Arrange training and all 
staff to attend. 

31/12/15 Head of Housing 
Housing Options 
Team Leader 

Housing Options and 
Support Manager. 

Housing Options staff adequately 
trained, in particular regarding 
assessing vulnerability for priority 
need, 

Clean, safe and 
healthy 
communities. 

20.  Commission a new 
Accommodation Finding 
Service for Chorley to 
maximise the use of the 
PRS for ‘non-priority’ 
households. 
 
 
 
 

Identify funding, draft 
service specification 
and commission with 
regard to procurement 
policy. 
 
Evaluate performance 
with a view extending 
for 2

nd
 year. 

31/12/2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
30/07/2016 
 
 

Procurement Team 
CC 
Legal team CC 

 Strategic Housing 
Officer. 

Increased numbers of ‘non-
priority’ households accessing the 
PRS. 
 

An ambitious 
council that does 
more to meet the 
needs of residents 
and the local area. 
 

21. Continued promotion of 
Private Landlords Forum 
to increase the number of 
landlords participating 
and making better use of 
the PRS. 
 

Promotion of PLF. 
 
Evaluate success of 
promotion. 
 

31/12/2016 
 
31/03/2017 
 

HIA Team 
Housing Options 
Team 

Team Leader (Private 
Sector).  

Increased participation in PLF  An ambitious 
council that does 
more to meet the 
needs of residents 
and the local area. 

 
22. 

Target Households likely 
to be affected by future 
welfare reform measures 
for budgeting advice. 

Identify Households. 
 
Provide advice or refer 
to other specialist debt 
advice if needed 
 

31/03/2016 
 
 
31/03/2017 

Housing Options 
Team. 
CAB 

Court and Welfare 
Officer. 

Households affected by changes 
in benefits have the opportunity to 
receive budgeting advice before 
the lowering of the benefit cap. 

A strong local 
economy. 

23.  
  
 
 

Offer budgeting advice at 
food banks in Chorley. 

Liaise with food bank/s 
and offer a budgeting 
drop-in service as 
required. 
 

31/12/2015 Housing Options 
team. 

Court and Welfare 
Officer. 

Possibly excluded customers 
receive budgeting advice. 

A strong local 
economy. 

24.  Provide Internet related 
training to ensure 
communities are digitally 
included. 
 
 

Recruit Digital Inclusion 
Officer. 
 
Contact community 
centres targeting 
possibly excluded 
groups including rural 
parishes. 
 
 

30/06/2016 
 
 
31/03/2017 
 

Court and Welfare 
Officer. 

Housing Options and 
Support Manager. 

Training completed in a wide 
range of urban and rural locations 
and well attended.  

Involving residents 
in improving their 
local area and 
equality of access 
for all. 

A
genda P

age 57
A

genda Item
 4



34 

 Key Action Key Milestones By When  Resources  Action Lead Outcomes Link to Corporate 
Strategy 

25. Adopt a policy relating to 
the procurement and 
allocation of Temporary 
Accommodation. 

Draft policy. 
 
Obtain member 
approval to adopt. 

31/03/2016 
 
30/06/2016 

Housing Options 
Team. 

Strategic Housing 
Officer. 

Fit for purpose policy adopted. An ambitious 
council that does 
more to meet the 
needs of residents 
and the local area. 

26. Maintain a robust 
approach to dealing with 
sightings of people 
Rough Sleeping and 
providing assistance. 

Review procedure with 
a view to making any 
improvements. 
 
Review performance. 

31/03/2016 
 
 
 
31/03/2017 
 

Housing Options 
Team. 

Housing Options 
Team Leader. 

Repeat rough sleeping eliminated 
if clients are willing to engage. 

Clean, safe and 
healthy 
communities. 

27. Establish resettlement 
procedure at Cotswold 
Supported Housing. 

Ensure procedure in 
place and staff trained. 

31/03/2016 Cotswold Supported 
Housing Manager. 

Housing Options and 
Support Manager. 

Customers who move into their 
own tenancies are provided with 4 
to 6 weeks continued support in 
their new tenancies to help 
maintain them successfully. 
 

An ambitious 
council that does 
more to meet the 
needs of residents 
and the local area. 

28. Appoint Youth Support 
Worker at Cotswold 
Supported Housing. 

Recruit Youth Support 
Worker. 

31/12/2015 Cotswold Supported 
Housing Manager. 

Housing Options and 
Support Manager. 

Increased numbers of 16/17 year 
olds successfully complete 
programmes of support. 

An ambitious 
council that does 
more to meet the 
needs of residents 
and the local area. 
 

Priority 4: 
Employment, training and education related to homelessness. 

 Key Action Key Milestones By When  Resources  Action Lead Outcomes Link to Corporate 
Strategy 

29. Target Homeless 
Households and those 
threatened with 
homelessness for 
Employment Education 
and Training 

Establish Referral 
mechanisms from 
Housing option, DWP 
and other partners. 
 
Establish and 
Employability Drop in at 
Cotswold SH 
 

31/12/2015 
 
 
 
 
 
31/03/2016 

Supported Housing 
Manager and Staff 
Housing Options 
Team 

Employability Officer Enhanced pathways to 
employment and training 
opportunities for Cotswold 
Supported Housing residents. 

A strong local 
economy. 

30. Homelessness 
Awareness School 
Education project. 

Identify and engage 
with Schools. 
 
Prepare and deliver 
training. 
 
Evaluate feedback with 
view to future delivery. 

31/12/2015 
 
 
30/09/2016 
 
 
31/12/2016 

Housing Options 
team. 

Court and Welfare 
Officer. 

Secondary School children are 
encouraged to stay at home 
longer, understanding the pitfalls 
of leaving home early, especially if 
claiming benefits. 

An ambitious 
council that does 
more to meet the 
needs of residents 
and the local area. 

A
genda P

age 58
A

genda Item
 4



35 

 Key Action Key Milestones By When  Resources  Action Lead Outcomes Link to Corporate 
Strategy 

31. Employability drop in at 
food banks 

Liaise with food bank/s 
and an employability 
drop-in service as 
required. 

31/12/2015 Housing Options 
team. 

Employability Officer. Food bank users who wouldn’t 
have been referred to the Council 
are able to benefit from 
employability advice and 
assistance. 
 

A strong local 
economy. 

32. Establish Pre-Tenancy 
Training provided by 
Cotswold Supported 
Housing 

Prepare materials and 
deliver first training 
sessions, review and 
repeat as necessary. 

31/12/2015 Cotswold Supported 
Housing Staff. 
 
Housing Options 
team. 

Cotswold Supported 
Housing Manager. 

Pre-Tenancy Training is 
successfully delivered to all 
residents who require it on their 
support plans. 

An ambitious 
council that does 
more to meet the 
needs of residents 
and the local area. 
 

32. Investigate possibility of 
providing work/work 
related training as part of 
Council related projects 
to people threatened with 
homelessness. 

Liaise with Economic 
Development over 
future employment or 
training opportunities 
related to Market Walk 
2, the Extra Care 
scheme or any other 
Council projects. 
 
If feasible devise a plan 
to take this forward.  

31/12/2016 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
31/03/2017 
 

Economic 
Development Team. 
Housing Options 
Team. 

Housing Options and 
Support Manager. 

A viable plan to link Housing 
Options clients with emerging 
employment/training opportunities 
will be established if it is feasible. 

A strong local 
economy. 

 

  

A
genda P

age 59
A

genda Item
 4



36 

Appendix B - Glossary 

 

Affordable Housing Housing for households whose needs are not met by the market included, social rented, affordable rented, 
intermediate home ownership and intermediate rented. 

Allocations Policy The set of rules which determine priority for applicants on a housing register or Choice Based Lettings 
system for the purpose of accessing social housing. 

Choice Based Lettings A proactive online biding system which allows choice to households wishing to access social housing as 
opposed to waiting to be allocated a property. 

Eligible Applicant During a homeless investigation we will consider whether applicants are eligible for assistance. This is 
considered against set criteria. 

Homelessness Anyone who does not have a safe or permanent home may be Homeless. 

Intermediate Home Ownership Housing models to enable households to buy a property to meet their needs who can’t afford to buy the open 
market.  Models include Shared Ownership, Shared Equity/Equity Share (e.g. Firstbuy), Discounted for Sale, 
Rent to Buy. 

Intentionally homeless If a homelessness applicant has deliberately done something or not done something which has resulted in 
you becoming homeless.  This includes Failure to act on advice that has been given to you. 

Mediation Facilitating dialogue between a client threatened with eviction and the property owner other tenants (often 
parents or partners) or landlord in order to assist the client to remain in their current home. 

P1E The quarterly homelessness statistical return made by the local housing authority to the Department of 
Communities and Local Government. 

Prevention Where a local authority takes positive action to provide housing assistance to someone who considers him or 
herself to be at risk of homelessness in the near future, and as a result the person is able to either remain in 
his or her existing accommodation or obtain alternative accommodation, providing a solution for at least the 
next six months. 

Priority Need Priority need is the second test in a homelessness application. People in priority need are considered to be 
more vulnerable than other people, and so more in need of help to find accommodation. 

A
genda P

age 60
A

genda Item
 4



37 

Private Landlord An owner of a property who rents the property to tenants who is not a housing association, council or third 
sectors organisation. 

Rental Bond Scheme  Assistance provided to people in housing need, but do not have a cash deposit to access private rented 
accommodation. Landlords are offered a bond in the form of a non-cash deposit guarantee by the Council. 

Rough Sleeping The situation if a is person sleeping, or bedded down, in the open air (such as on streets, or in doorways, 
parks or bus shelters); people in buildings or other places not designed for habitation (such as barns, sheds, 
car parks, cars, derelict boats, stations or "bashes"). 

Select Move The sub-regional Choice Based Lettings system for Chorley, Preston and South Ribble local authorities 
accessed via www.selectmove.co.uk 

Sanctuary Scheme The Scheme provides professionally installed security measures to allow those experiencing domestic 
violence to remain in their own accommodation where it is safe to do so, where it is their choice and where 
the perpetrator no longer lives within the accommodation. 

Supporting People The grant administration programme which commissions housing related support services to allow 
vulnerable people to remain in their own homes.  Lancashire County Council administers the budget on 
behalf of the 12 lower tier districts in the county. 

Strategy A strategy is a long-term plan of action designed to achieve a particular goal. 

Temporary Accommodation When an individual or household makes a homeless application the Council must offer them temporary 
accommodation if they have nowhere else to stay. This accommodation may consist of a flat, house, bedsit, 
and hostel or, in some limited circumstances, a bed and breakfast hotel. 

 

A
genda P

age 61
A

genda Item
 4

http://www.selectmove.co.uk/


T
his page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Agenda Page 63 Agenda Item 6



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Agenda Page 67 Agenda Item 7

By virtue of paragraph(s) 1 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Agenda Page 73 Agenda Item 8

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Agenda Page 77 Agenda Item 8

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Agenda Page 79 Agenda Item 9

By virtue of paragraph(s) 1,2,3,4,5,6,7,7a,7b,7c of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Agenda Page 87 Agenda Item 10

By virtue of paragraph(s) 1,2,3,4,5,6,7,7a,7b,7c of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	1 Minutes of meeting Thursday, 19 November 2015 of Executive Cabinet
	4 Chorley Prevention of Homelessness Strategy and Review 2016-2019
	Prevention of Homelessness Strategy

	6 Software and Postal Contracts
	7 Shared Assurance Services
	8 Acquisition of Land, former Apex House, Stump Lane, Chorley
	Former Apex House, Stump Lane Chorley

	9 Re-tendering of Handyperson and Minor Adaptation contracts
	10 Integrated Home Improvement Services (IHIS) - Performance Update

